
1.

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING - MAYOR & BOARD OF TRUSTEES

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE

June 10, 2013
7:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
- Niki Ghronis, Pleasantdale Elementary School

ROLL CALL

AUD!ENCE

CONSENT AGENDA - OMNIBUS VOTE

All items listed with an asterisk (*) are considered routine by the Village Board
and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these
items unless a Board member or citizen so request, in which event the item will
be removed from the Consent Agenda.

7:00 p.m.
Police Department Promotion Recognition

Corporal David Allen Promotion to Sergeant

MINUTES

-A. Approval of Reoular Meetino of Mav 28, 2013

-B. Receive and File Veterans Memorial Committee Meetino of April 24. 2013

.C. Receive and File Draft Plan Commission Meetinq of June 3, 2013

-D. Approval of Special Villaqe Board Meetino of June 3.2013 - plan
Commission Candidate lnterviews

ORDINANCES

A. Consideration of Ordinance Amendino Section ? 67 of Artinla Yt nf

7. RESOLUTIONS

2.

3.

4.

6.

-A.

8. CONSIDERATIONS

5.



-8. Aoproval of Plan Commission Recommendation to Approve Special Use
for an Automobile Sales and Service business in a Gl General lndustrial
District (2-09-2013: 60 Shore Drive - Mucha/Brand Max)

-C. Aporoval of Plan Commission Recommendation to Approve Special Use
to oermit an automobile parts powder coatinq business with limited outside
storaqe of vehicles (Z-1 0-2013: 15W308 North Frontaqe Road - Brviak)

-D. Approval of Plan Commission Recommendation to Approve Variation to
permit a fence that exceeds the maximum permitted heiqht of five feet
N-03-2013: 8611 Crest Court - Schulz)

.E. Approval of Recommendation to Award Contract for Leak Detection
Services for Villaqe Water Mains

"F. Approval of Vendor List in the amount of $352.473.21 for all funds. plus
$ 193,997.49 for pavroll, for a qrand total of $546.470.70

G. Other Considerations - For Announcement, Deliberation and/or
Discussion Only - No Official Action will be Taken

9. AUDIENCE

10. REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM VILLAGE OFFICIALS

,,t1. cLosED SESS|ON

A. Approval of Closed Session Minutes of May 28, 2013

B. Pending Litigation

12, RECONVENED MEETING

13. ADJOURNMENT



TO: Mayor and Board of Trustees

FROM: Village Administrator Steve Stricker and Staff

SUBJECT: Regular Meeting of June 10,2013

DATE: June 7,2013

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - Niki Chronis, Pleasantdale Elementary School

POLICE DEPARTMENT PROMOTIONS RECOGNITION

At its May 22 meeting, the Board of Fire and Police Commissioners approved the
promotion of Corporal David Allen to the rank of Sergeant to fill the vacancy in that rank
created by the promotion of Sergeant Marc Loftus to the position of Deputy Chief of Police.
Corporal Allen's promotion goes into effect on June 10 and Police Chief John Madden will
recognize his promotion at Monday's meeting.

6. ORDINANCES

A. Amend Chapter 2 (Audience Portion of Board Aqenda)

Based on a discussion at the last Board meeting, the Village Attorney has
prepared an Ordinance amending Section 2.67 ol Article Xl of Chapter 2 of
the Burr Ridge Municipal Code establishing two audience comment periods at
each Regular Board Meeting. The first audience comment period shall
precede the consideration by the Board of Trustees of its business agenda for
the meeting and shall be limited to members of the public to addreis any of
those matters listed on that meeting agenda of the Board of Trustees, if such
audience member cannot remain at the meeting until the agenda item is
heard. The other audience comment period shall follow the consideration of
business agenda by the Board of Trustees, at which time the public is allowed
to comment on matters related to business of the Village of Burr Ridge
generally. The time allotted for public comment shall not exceed five minutes
for any one group or individual, subject to reasonable extension at the
discretion of the President. There is no restriction on whether a member of
the audience is a resident or a non-resident.

It is our recommendation: that the Ordinance be approved.

7. RESOLUTIONS

A. Prevailinq Waqe Rate for public Works Emplovees

Enclosed is a Resolution that the Viilage is required to approve each June.
The state Department of Labor requires that laborers, meihanics and other
wo.rkers employed in any public works projects undertaken by the Village bepaid at the prevairing wage rates for c6nstruction workeri in cook- and
DuPage Counties. A schedule of these rates is included as an attachment to
the Resolution.

-1- June 7. 2013



8.

It is our recommendation: that the Resolution be adopted.

CONSIDERATIONS

A. Plan Commission Recommendation - Special Use (Dao Sushi & Thai)

Please find attached a letter from the Plan Commission recommending
approval of a request by Dao Sushi & Thai Restaurant for special use
approval to allow for the expansion and modification of an outdoor dining area
foran existing restalrant. The property is located at 200 Burr Ridge paikway
in the County Line Square. ln 201 1 the petitioner expanded the restaurant to
incorporate an additional tenant space in the shopping center. This petition
seeks to extend the outdoor dining area in front of this additional storefront
space while also removing some of the outdoor dining area from the opposite
end of the expanded storefront. The Plan Commission concluded that the
changes were minor and consistent with the original approval.

B.

be accepted and staff be directed to prepare an Ordinance granting special
use approval.

Plan Commission Recommendation - Special Use (Mucha/Brand Max)

Please find attached a letter from the Plan Commission recommending
approval of a request by Anita K. Mucha for special use for an Automobile
Sales and Service business in a Gl General lndustrial District. The propefi
is located at 60 Shore Drive. The subject property is improved with a 60,000
square foot warehouse building. There is already an auto sales business in
the building (Corvette Mike's). The subject business would be similar except
that it specializes in the sales of pre-owned luxury automobiles. The business
would occupy 7,400 square feet of the building.

that the Plan Commission recommendation

that the Plan Commission recommendation

D.

be accepted and staff be directed to prepare an Ordinance granting special
use approval.

Plan Commission Recommendation - Special Use (Brviak)

Please find attached a letter from the Plan Commission recommending
approval of a request by Richard Bryjak for special use approval for the
continued use of the property for an automobile repair and service business
with limited outside storage of automobiles. The property is located at
15W308 North Frontage Road. ln 2011 the petitioner was granted a
temporary special use for automobile service with limited outside storage of
vehicles for sale. The petitioner's business powder coats and installs
automobile parts (for example, wheels). The previous special use was
temporary for two reasons. There were prior propefi maintenance violations
and the two year time period would allow the Village to determine if the
property was going to be properly maintained. Also, the Plan Commission
indicated that they would like to see the property rezoned to the T1 District

It is our recommendation:

It is our recommendation:

-2- June 7,2013



D.

but accepted this use as interim use. lt was noted at the 2013 hearing that
there had been no additional violations since 2011. There have been no
noted property maintenance violations since 20'l 1.

It is our recommendation: that the Plan Commission recommendation
be accepted and staff be directed to prepare an Ordinance granting special
use approval.

Plan Commission Recommendation - Variation (Schulz)

Please find attached a letter from the Plan Commission recommending
approval of a request by David Schulz on behalf the property owner for a
variation from the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance to permit a fence that
exceeds the maximum permitted height of 5 feet. The homeowner seeks to
construct a swimming pool and patio improvements for an existing home. A
requirement of the Village's Building Ordinance is that the pool be enclosed
with a fence. ln this particular case, the petitioner is challenged by a
significant change in grade and the need to construct retaining walls around
the pool and patio area. As a result, the fence that is proposed for the pool
has to cross the retaining walls at a 90 degree angle which results in the
fence exceeding the maximum height permitted by the Zoning Ordinance (4
foot fence plus 3.5 foot retaining wall).

It is our recommendation: that the Plan Commission recommendation
be accepted and staff be directed to prepare an Ordinance granting the
variation.

Contract for Leak Detection Services

The FY 2013-14 Budget includes $22,000.00 for a system wide leak detection
survey to be performed on the Village's water distribution system. The last
leak detection survey was performed during March 2004 by the Severn Trent
Company. Periodic leak detection surveys are necessary in order to ensure
that the Village remains in compliance with the lllinois DNR requirements for
unaccounted-for-flow, and in order to reduce unrecovered expenditures that
result from the leaked commodity, each unit of which is purchased from
Bedford Park, and has monetary value.

The 2004 leak detection survey identified leaks at 20 locations in the Village.
All 20 leaks were subsequently investigated by the Water Division and repairs
were made. lt is anticipated that at least 20 leaks will be identified again this
year, consistent with previous years, and the continual aging of the buried
infrastructure. Proposals were solicited from three qualified and reputable
leak detection companies. Bids results for this work were received as follows:

. M.E. Simpson Co., lnc., Valparaiso $14,560.00

E.

. Associated Technical Services Ltd., Villa Park $ 9,609.60
plus additional $350.00 to pinpoint every leak found
($16,609.60 if 20 leaks found). Wachs Water Services, Buffalo Grove

-3-

$18,018.00

June 7.2013



The proposal of $14,560.00 from M.E. Simpson Co., lnc. of Valparaiso is the
lowest flat rate proposal received and is $7,440 under the budgeted amount
of $22,000.

It is our recommendation: that the contract for a system wide leak
detection survey be awarded to M.E. Simpson Co., lnc., of Valparaiso, in the
amount of $14,560.00.

F. Vendor List

Enclosed is the Vendor List in the amount of $352,473.21 for all funds, plus
$193,997.49 for payroll, for a grand total of 9546,470.70.

It is our recommendation: that the Vendor List be approved.

-4- June 7, 2013



REGULAR MEETING

MAYOR AIID BOARD OF TRUSTEES
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE. IL

s4
May 28,2013

CALL TO ORDER The Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Board of Trustees of May 28,
2013 was held in the Meeting Room of the Village Hall, 7660 County Line Road, Burr Ridge,
Illinois and called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Straub.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIAI\CE The Pledge of Allegiance was conducted by Maggie
Callanan of Gower Middle School.

ROLL CALL was taken by the Village Clerk and the results denoted the following
present: Trustees Paveza, Ruzak, Franzese, Bolos, Grasso and Mayor Straub. Absent was
Trustee Manieri who arrived at 7:09 p.m. Also present were Village Administrator Steve
Stricker, Public Works Director Paul May, Community Development Director Doug Pollock,
Deputy Police Chief Marc Loftus, Village Atlorney Scott Uhler, and Village Clerk Karen
Thomas. There being a quorum, the meeting was open to official business.

AUDIENCE Mayor Straub stated that Agenda Item 8B includes a discussion regarding the
Audience Sections of the Board Agenda. He mentioned for the first Audience portion of the
Agenda this evening, it will be limited to items on the current agenda and those permitted to
speak would be restricted to current residents, business owners, and former Trustees. Mayor
Straub also noted that each speaker will be allowed a 5 minute time with a waming at the 4
minute mark.

Former Trustee Dolores Cizek, LaGrange, discussed funding responsibility for crime control at
summer concerts, the Marketplace Faimess Act, and Village Administrative Salaries.

Conrad Fialkowski, 1 l0 Waterside Place, thanked the Trustees for tabling the Chase Bank
Ordinances and Resolution. Mr. Fialkowski feels the Village will benefit from the fees in lieu of
sales tax and it is beneficial to have the full commitment in writing.

Marty Gleason, 80s and County Line Road, discussed a speech by Edmund Burke regarding
decision making and good judgment.

Kathy Scanlon, 16 Tartan Ridge, discussed HBG Corporation and the lack of transparency they
have provided to the Village. Ms. Scanlon discussed the campaigt contributions made by
Aristotle Halikias, President of HBG Corporation, to Citizens for Gary Grasso and stated she
feels Trustee Grasso should recuse from the vote for Chase Bank.

CONSENT AGENDA - OMNIBUS VOTE After reading the Consent Agenda by Mayor
Straub, motion was made by Trustee Bolos and seconded by Trustee Grasso that the Consent
Agenda - Omnibus Vote, (attached as Exhibit A), and the recommendations indicated for each

10074



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board ofTrustees, Village of Burr Ridge
May 28. 2013

respective item, be hereby approved.

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
AYES:
NAYS:

6 - Trustees Bolos, Grasso, Paveza, Ruzak, Franzese, Manieri
0 - None

ABSENT: 0-None
There being six affirmative votes, the motion carried.

APPROVAL OF REGULAR MEETING OF MAY 13. 2013 were approved for
publication under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote.

CAMERAS The Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote, approved the purchase
of two L3 Mobile-vision in-car video systems and related equipment from L3 Mobile vision,
Inc. in the amounl of$12,890.

TO HARVEST FEST The Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote, approved
the request fiom the Burr Ridge Park District for a contribution toward its Harvest Fest event in
the amount of $1,000 from the HoteyMotel Tax Fund.

Board, under the Consent Agenda by omnibus vote, approved the request from I & M National
Heritage corridor for donation from Hotel / Motel rax Fund for dues in the amount of $2.900.

The

Omnibus Vote, received and filed the resignation
August 2, 2013.

The Board, under the Consent Agenda by
letter from Sergeant Joseph Farrar, effective

The Board,
under the Consent Agenda by omnibus Vote, authorized the goard of Fire and police
Commissioners to fill the vacant position in the rank of Sergeant, as well as the corresponding
vacancy that will occur in the rank of corporal, and to hire a replacement officer to fill the
subsequent vacancy in the Patrol Officer force.

10075



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge
May 28.2013

FORD F35O FOR THE FORESTRY DIVISION
Omnibus Vote, approved the FY20l2-13 Vendor
period ending May 28,2013.

under the Consent Agenda by
amount of $137,667.17 for the

The Board,
List in the

APPROVAL OF FY2OI3-I1 VENDOR LIST IN THE AMOUNT OF $193.661.60 FOR

CONSTRUCTION The Board, under the Consent Agenda by Omnibus Vote, approved the
FY2013-14 Vendor List in the amount of $193,664.60 for the period ending May 28,2013, and
payroll in the amount of $ 186,229.06 for the period ending May I l, 2013.

Due to the tabling of the Ordinances and Resolutions for Chase Bank at the Board Meeting of
May 13, 2013, Mayor Straub suggested addressing the Resolution, Agenda Item 7A, prior to the
Ordinances.

Mayor Straub also suggested brevity with regard to agenda item discussions and discouraged
repetition. He also noted that effort would be made to maintain a 2 hour meeting time with an
optional recess. Mayor Straub discussed the Roberts Rule of Order and meeting guidelines
noting that the Board would be recognized for comments first followed by audience members.
He also noted that speakers must first be recognized by the viltage President prior to making
their comments.

ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AGREEMENT WITH CHASE
BANK- FEE IN LIEU OF SALES TAX

At the suggestion of Village Administrator Steve Stricker, Village Attomey Scott Uhler initiated
the discussion with an update on the chase Bank Agreement since the previous Board Meeting.

Village Attomey Uhler stated that following the Board Meeting of May 13, 2013, a Summary
was prepared with the questions that were raised in addition to Board comments on the
Agreement. Discussions were held with Robert charal, vice President of HBG corporation, and
Aris Halikias, President of HBG corporation, regarding the Summary Items which included an
increase in the letter of credit amount and additional protections to be added to the Agreement.
Mr. Uhler stated two additional provisions have been added to the agreement in the event of a
bankruptcy, transfer ofproperty interests, or change in ownership status as follows:

l. the village can immediately request the payment of the $240,000 less village
Contribution Amountsl

10016



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board ofTrustees, Village of Bun Ridge
May 28.2013

2. the owner commits to waiving any arguments against this Agreement that are not
enforceable by the Village for lack of consideration or for lack of municipal authority to
enter into this agreement.

Trustee Bolos pointed out that the applicant for the process is Chase Bank, rather than HBG
Corporation, and Chase agreed to provide a covenant mandating the $12,000 yearly payment to
the Village. Trustee Bolos questioned why HBG is now assuming this responsibility. Trustee
Bolos indicated the Agreement does not represent what was negotiated and Chase should be
contacted by the Village to inquire about the change in their legal commitment.

Trustee Franzese stated he was a member of the Plan commission when chase initially
petitioned for the special use. He questioned if a written Agreement exists between HBG
Corporation and Chase Bank that requires Chase to make the donation to HBG Corporation. In
response, Mayor straub stated he would like to defer all questions to HBG to be answered at
once.

Trustee Franzese questioned language in the Agreement that was added related to the ability of
the Village to take legal action against HBG Corporation in the evenl of a bankruptcy or
dissolution.

Trustee Paveza inquired if the guarantees added to the Agreement will ensure that the Village
will receive the payments. Village Attomey Scott Uhler responded that the Agreement specifies
that the payment to the Village will be remitted by HBG Corporation and the current terms are
the best set of terms that the landowner and chase are willing to offer to the village. He also
indicated that per the lease, which was provided to the Board, a stipulation is included requiring
chase to pay $12,000 per year to HBG corporation who in tum will remit those funds to the
Village.

Trustee Paveza requested clarification on village recourse if payments are not made. village
Attomey Scott flhler explained that in the event of non-payment, the entire $100,000 letter of
credit can be drawn down and there is a commitment in the Agreement for a 20 year term of
annual payments and an award of attomey's fees for amounts owed above the $100,000.

Trustee Grasso noted that if the landowner is developing the property within the special Use
guidelines, it does not seem appropriate to deny the landowner the opportunity to do so. village
Attomey Scott Uhler responded that the Zoning is a separate matter from the Agreement for the
Fees.

Trustee Ruzak stated the Village Administrator and Village Attomey have spent significant time
reviewing the Agreement and associated documents and he is satisfied with the Agreement.

10077



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board ofTrustees, Village of Burr Ridge
May 28.2013

Trustee Manieri requested a review of the Plan Commission actions with regard to the Zoning
Request and the Fee Agreement. Village Administrator Steve Stricker responded that the Zoning
Request was a separate matter from the Fee Agreement, which was not part of the Plan
Commission approval process and was mentioned solely in the Findings of Fact. The Agreement
was negotiated after the Board concurred with the Plan Commission and directed Staffto prepare
the Ordinances.

Trustee Manieri inquired if the Board could remand the Ordinances to the Plan Commission. In
response, Village Attomey Uhler responded that all of the standards for the Ordinances have
been met and approved by the Board.

Trustee Manieri asked if there were enforcement controls present in the revised Agreement aside
from the $100,000 Letter of Credit. Village Aftorney Scott Uhler explained the Village recourse
to draw on the Letter of Credit and pursue legal action in the event of non-payment.

Trustee Grasso pointed out that in a breach of contract, legal action must typically be taken for
enforcement.

Trustee Bolos pointed out that the Village cannot accept a contract unless it is an unsolicited
voluntary donation, which has only been offered from Chase, not HBG Corporation. Thus,
Trustee Bolos feels entering into a contract with HBG Corporation would be illegal. In response,
Village Attomey Scott Uhler stated that the contribution that HBG Corporation is represented as
a voluntary contribution.

Robert Charal, Executive Vice President of HBG Corporation, explained that the Agreement is
very complex and unique. He discussed the legal representation of Attomey Bemard Citron, for
HBG Corporation. Mr. Charal explained that ultimately, the fee in lieu of sales tax funds are
being paid by Chase and that HBG Corporation would enter into the Agreemenl with the Village
and Chase would enter into an Agreement with HBG Corporation. He explained that this is
noted as an exhibit to the Agreement. Mr. Charal highlighted the specific area of the Agreement
that states the payment will be made to the Village for 20 years.

Trustee Bolos questioned the representation of Mr. Citron noting the Plan Commission Minutes
stated that he acted on behalf of Chase Bank. Mr. Charal responded that the Agreement is
extremely robust with significant protection for the Village.

Trustee Franzese also expressed his disappointment that Mr. Citron was not representing Chase
Bank as the Plan Commission was led to believe and as noted in the Plan Commission Minutes.

Trustee Manieri asked Mr. Charal to explain the reluctance to provide a letter of credit for the
full $240,000 obligation. Village Administrator Steve Stricker responded that he again discussed
the request with Mr. Halikias.

10078



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Bun Ridge
May 28.2013

Mr. Charal explained that a letter of credit for the full $240,000 would be a significant economic
hardship.

Trustee Paveza inquired if the representation of Mr. Citron for HBG Corporation rather than
Chase Bank has any bearing on the Agreement. In response, Village Aftomey Scott Uhler
indicated there is no legal effect.

Former Trustee Dolores Cizek, LaGrange, stated that Trustee Grasso should not participate in
any discussion related to this matter due to her husband's involvement with HBG Corporation.

Kathleen Mclnerney, Braemoor, questioned why the Agreement cannot be fulty guaranteed.

At the request of Mayor Straub, Village Administrator Steve Stricker explained that there are
two matters to be considered; the Agreement for the voluntary fees in lieu of sales tax and the
Ordinances for the Zoning. Mr. Stricker noted that the Ageement is the best deal that can be
provided to the Village and further negotiations are not an option. Mr. Stricker stated that as
Village Administrator, it is his recommendation that the Agreement be accepted.

Trustee Bolos stated the Agreement does not represent what was negotiated by Acting President
Sodikoff and former Trustee Grela. ln response, Mr. Stricker stated there were significant
requests and negotiations for the Agreement and he was not in attendance at those meetings.
village Attomey Scott Uhler added that the Agreement was in final form and ready for approval
when the prior Village Board and Acting President Sodikoff were still in office, but it was not
able to be voted on at a Board Meeting prior to their terms expiring.

Motion was made by Trustee Ruzak and seconded by Trustee Grasso to adopt the Resolution
Authorizing Agreement with Chase Bank - Fee in Lieu of Sales Tax and that the Mayor be
authorized to sign the Agreement.

Trustee Manieri inquired if the fees contributed could be designated for the Pathway Fund.
Village Administrator Steve Stricker replied the fund designation is not part of this discussion.

Mayor Straub discussed transparency and exercising caution with inferences. He noted that
Trustee Bolos is an officer with Lemont National Bank and has an interest in the bank. which
could be viewed as a conflict of interest since Chase Bank is a competitor.

Trustee Bolos questioned Mayor Straub's inferences which he explained by stating that a Trustee
was requested to recuse themself from the vote due to an association with Mr. Halikias and a
similar inference could be made with regard to Trustee Bolos' banking association.

10079



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge
Mav 28.2013

Trustee Bolos stated she has nothing against Chase Bank and feels the bank would be a good
addition to the Village. Mayor Straub issued an apology and stated he would like to be business
friendly and attract businesses to the Village.

Trustee Paveza stated he has spent significant time researching the Agreement and feels it will
guarantee the Village more than 50% of the funds and allows for further development in the
Village.

Trustee Franzese reiterated that the Plan Commission voted only on the Zoning relief sought by
the petitioner and although the voluntary contribution was mentioned during the Public Hearing,
it was not tied to the Zoning. Trustee Franzese mentioned he holds a Chase Credit Card and
asked if he should recuse himself from the vote.

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
AYES:
NAYS:

AYES:
NAYS:

4 - Trustees Ruzak, Grasso, Paveza, Mayor Straub
3 - Trustees Bolos, Franzese, Manieri

ABSENT: 0 None
There being four affirmative votes, the motion carried.
THIS IS RESOLUTION NO. R.O9-I3

DRIVE THROUGH SERVICE IN A BI DISTRICT (2"16-2012: 150 BURR RIDGE
PARI(WAY - CHASE) Mayor Straub requested a motion for this Ordinance.

Motion was made by Trustee Ruzak and seconded by Trustee Franzese to approve the Ordinance
granting a special use pursuant to the Village of Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance for a bank with
drive+hrough service in a B1 District (2-16-2012:150 Burr Ridge Parkway - Chase).

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
4 - Trustees Ruzak, Franzese, Paveza, Grasso
I - Trustee Bolos

ABSENT: 0 - None
Trustee Manieri recused himself from the vote as he has a Chase Credit Card.
There being four affirmative votes. the motion carried.
THIS IS ORDINANCE NO. A.834-I3-13.

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A VARIATION FROM THE
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE ZONING ORDINANCE FOR A REDUCTION IN THE
FRONT YARD SETBACK (Z-16-2012: 150 BURR RIDGE PARKWAY - CHASE) Mayor
Straub requested a motion for this Ordinance.

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE GRANTII.G A SPECIAL USE PURSUANT

10080



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Bun Ridge
May 28. 2013

Motion was made by Trustee Ruzak and seconded by Trustee Grasso to approve the Ordinance
granting a variation from the Village ofBun Ridge Zoning Ordinance for a reduction in the front
yard setback (2-16-2012:150 Burr Ridge Parkway - Chase).

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
AYES:
NAYS:

4 - Trustees Ruzak, Grasso, Franzese. Paveza
I - Trustee Bolos

ABSENT: 0-None
Trustee Manieri recused himself from the vote as he has a Chase Credit Card.
There being four affirmative votes, the motion carried.
THIS IS ORDINANCE NO. A-834-14-I3.

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF

2012: 150 BURR RIDGE PARKWAY - CHASE)
this Ordinance.

Mayor Straub requested a motion for

Motion was made by Trustee Ruzak and seconded by Trustee Grasso to approve the ordinance
amending the Zoning ordinance of the village of Bun Ridge to reduce the required number of
vehicle stacking spaces for a bank drive-through facility (2-16-2012:150 Bun Ridge parkway -
Chase).

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
AYES:
NAYS:

4 - Trustees Ruzak, Grasso, Franzese, Paveza
1 - Trustee Bolos

ABSENT: 0 - None
Trustee Manieri recused himself from the vote as he has a Chase Credit Card.
There being four affirmative votes, the motion carried.
THIS IS ORDINANCE NO. A-834-15.13.

zurz: r5u BUl(l( ruDGE PARI(WAY - CHASE) Mayor Straub requested a motion for
this Ordinance.

Motion was made by Trustee Ruzak and seconded by Trustee Paveza to approve the Ordinance
granting a conditional sign approval as per the Village ofBun Ridge Sign Ordinance to increase
the combined area of signs and a variation from said Ordinance to allow more than one sign on
an interior lot (5-05-201 2: 1 50 Bun Ridge Parkway - Chase).

10081

2012: 150 BURR RIDGE PARKWAY - CIIASE)
this Ordinance.

CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE GRANTING CONDITIONAL SIGN
APPROVAL AS PER THE VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE SIGN ORDINANCE TO



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board ofTrustees, Village ofBun Ridge
May 28.2013

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
AYES:
NAYS:

4 - Trustees Ruzak, Paveza, Grasso, Franzese
1 - Trustee Bolos

ABSENT: 0-None
Trustee Manieri recused himself from the vote as he has a Chase Credit Card.
There being four affirmative votes, the motion carried.
THIS IS ORDINANCE NO. A.923-02-13.

ROAD Village Administrator Steve Stricker explained that the Village has received an
offer from the Pulte Group to purchase the 8.5 acre Pump Center property at 11680 German
Church Road for the asking price of $2,445,000. He added that the Pulte Group would also like
to purchase the property just east of the village property as well. Mr. Stricker stated pulte
would like to build cluster homes on the combined sites similar to those in the Savoy Ctub.

Mr. Stricker added that the Board is requested to approve a contract for the sale of the property
that would be contingent upon the passage of appropriate zoning for the property by the plan
Commission.

Mayor Straub inquired about the acreage of the property to the east of the Village property. In
response, Mr. Stricker stated he believed it is 10 acres.

Peter Tremulis, Vice President of Land for Pulte Homes, stated Pulte is interested in working
with the village in acquiring the property. He clarified that the property to the east of the
Village property is 12.5 acres and the intent is to combine both properties for a Planned Unit
Development.

Trustee Grasso inquired ifany other offers on the property have been received and noted that the
appraisal value as shown in the Resolution is fiom 2008 and wondered if it should be
reappraised. Village Administrator Steve Stricker responded that it has not been formally
reappraised in order to avoid a decrease in the property value. Mr. Stricker did add that he
contacted the original Appraiser of the property for a verbal analysis ofthe property and he was
told that the offer was at or better than recent sales for similar property.

Trustee Franzese inquired if the proceeds from the sale of the property would be used to pay
down the debt on the Police Facility. Mr. stricker responded that there is cunently a bond,
which cannot yet be paid down but the money would be set aside in the Debt Service Fund to do
so at the appropriate time. Mr. Stricker explained that the soonest the bonds can be called in is
December 15, 2016.

r0082

DISCUSSION REGARDING OFFER FROM PULTE GROUP TO PURCHASE



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board ofTrustees, Village of Bun Ridge
May 28. 2013

Trustee Bolos inquired if the transaction is a cash payment to the Village and Mr. Tremulis
indicated that it would be.

Mayor Straub inquired about the status of the development of the Savoy Club and Mr. Tremulis
stated that sales are ahead ofschedule and its development is a success.

Trustee Manieri inquired if the purchase of the Village prope(y would still proceed if Pulte is
unable to acquire the property to the east. Mr. Tremulis responded that both properties are
needed for the development to proceed.

Motion was made by Trustee Manieri and seconded by Trustee Paveza to accept the offer from
Pulte Group to purchase the Pump Center Property in the amount of $2,445,000 and to direct the
Village Attomey to negotiate a contract satisfactory to the Village that will be contingent on the
successful passage of the necessary zoning to allow for the development of a cluster home
project similar to the Savoy Club development.

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT: 0-None
There being six affirmative votes, the motion carried

6 - Trustees Manieri, Paveza, Ruzak, Grasso, Franzese, Bolos
0 - None

AGENDA Mayor Straub asked Village Attomey Scott Uhler to provide an explanation with
regard to the Audience Section ofthe Board Agenda.

Mr. Uhler explained that the Agenda format used by the Village has been adopted by the Village
Board as part of the Village Code. The first Audience Section is prior to the business portion of
the meeting and a second Audience portion is scheduled at the end of the meeting, with
opportunities for Audience comments during the meeting.

Mr. Uhler added that limits can be set for the Audience portions to best facilitate the efficiency
ofthe Board.

Trustee Paveza stated he feels that anyone who wishes to address the Board may do so but feels
that the first Audience portion of the meeting should be reserved for comments related to the
Agenda. He indicated the second Audience section at the end of the meeting could be used for
discussion not related to the Agenda. Trustee Paveza said he would like to enforce the 5 minute
time limit.

Scott Uhler to provide an explanation with

10083



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Bun Ridge
May 28.2013

Trustee Franzese stated he also feels the first Audience portion should be limited to Agenda
Items only. He added that property owners should be permitted to address the Board even if they
are not residents.

Trustee Grasso stated that a non-resident affected by an Agenda Item should also be permitted to
speak.

Trustee Bolos inquired why parameters are being established for the Audience items at this time.
Mayor Straub responded that questions have arisen regarding the Audience sections and felt they
should be clarified.

Village Attomey Scott Uhler added there is a legal reason for addressing the procedures. He
explained that the Open Meetings Act was amended approximately lYz yeas ago and
Municipalities are required to clariry the Audience portions of their meetings.

Trustee Bolos inquired as to what the Village Code states with regard to the Audience portions.
Mr. Uhler replied that nothing is specified and the procedure has simply been assumed.

Trustee Bolos stated that the first Audience participation section should allow anyone to speak
on an Agenda Item.

Trustee Manieri stated anyone should be allowed to speak on an Agenda Item and feels there
should be guidelines for the 5 minute time limit with a friendly reminder when speakers exceed
the time limit.

The Board discussed suggested guidelines for the Audience Sections

Former Trustee Dolores Cizek of LaGrange stated that her freedom of speech was violated when
she was restricted to speaking only at the end ofthe Board Meeting.

Former Trustee Elaine Milota, 8921 Royal Drive, stated speakers should be allowed to finish
their thoughts if they are giving a cohesive discussion, especially due to their inexperience at
public speaking. Ms. Milota feels it is intimidating to use timers and gavels to limit speakers.

Village Attomey Scott Uhler stated a set of guidelines would be developed for review at the next
Board Meeting that incorporates the Board's thoughts expressed.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS There were none at this time.

AUDIENCE Marilou McGirr, former Trustee and current Pathway Commission Member,
expressed her thoughts with regard to Agenda Item 7A, Chase Bank Fee in Lieu of Sales Tax.
Ms. Mccin feels when the Board is split on a vote and the Mayor must break the tie, it is a

10084



Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board ofTrustees, Village of Burr Ridge
May 28.2013

serious matter that requires Board attention. Ms. McGin also discussed her feelings with regard
to Trustees recusing from the Board vote and feels Trustee Grasso should have done so. Ms.
McGirr also feels that audience speakers, such as Ms. cizek, have valid input and should be
respected.

Ms. McGirr questioned why the flag was displayed rather than the Village Logo and Mr. Stricker
responded that during the timefiame of Memorial Day, Flag Day, and Fourth of July, the flag has
always been displayed.

REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM VILLAGE OFFICIALS Village
Administrator Steve Stricker asked the Board to review the draft of the Village Newsletter and
provide comments to Assistant Village Administrator Lisa Scheiner.

Trustee Manieri noted a fishing derby will be held June 8s through the pleasantdale park
District.

village Administrator steve Stricker stated the 5K Race will be held on Saturday, June l't and
the first summer concert will take place on Friday, June 76.

ADJOURNMENT Motion was made by Trustee Paveza and seconded by Trustee Manieri
that the Regular Meeting of May 28, 2013 be adjoumed to closed Session to discuss Approval of
Closed Session Minutes of April 22,2013, Pending Litigation and Employment of Employee.

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
AYES: 6 - Trustees Paveza, Manieri, Ruzak, Franzese, Bolos, Grasso
NAYS: 0-None
ABSENT: 0-None
There being six affirmative votes, the motion carried and the meeting was adjoumed at 9:16 p.M.

PLEASE NorE: where there is no sunmary of discussion on any items in the minutes, this
reflects that no discussion occurred other than the introduction ofthe item.

Karen J. Thomas
Village Clerk
Bun Ridge, Illinois

APPROVED BY the President and

,2013.
Board of Trustees this

10085

day of



RECONVENED REGULAR MEETING

MAYOR AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES.
VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE. IL

Mav 28.2013

CALL To ORDER The Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Board of rrustees of May 29,2013
was reconvened at 9:50 p.m. with the same Trustees in attendance as immediately preceding the
Closed Meeting from 9:30 p.m. to 9:50 p.m.

RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING Motion was made by Trustee Ruzak and
seconded by Trustee Grasso that the Regular Meeting of May 28, 2013 be reconvened.

On Voice Vote, the motion carried and the Regular Meeting was reconvened at 9:50 p.m.

Motion was made by
Trustee Ruzak and seconded by Trustee Grasso to approve the
Village Administrator for the period of May 2013 to April 2017.

On Roll Call. Vote Was:

Employnent Agreement of the

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT: 0-None
There being six affirmative votes, the motion carried

6 - Trustees Ruzak, Grasso, Paveza, Franzese, Bolos and Manieri
0 - None

WORKS OPERATIONS SUPERVISOR Motion was made by Trustee Ruzak and
seconded by Trustee Pavezz to direct staff to fill the vacant position of Pubtic Works Operations
Supervisor

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT: 0-None
There being six affirmative votes, the motion carried

6 - Trustees Ruzak, Paveza, Franzese, Grasso, Bolos and Manieri
0 - None

The Village
WorksAdministrator presented the Public works Director's recommendation to reclassifu public

Operations Supervisor from Range 110 to Range 108A.

r 0089



Reconvened Regular Meeting
Mayor and Board of Trustees, Village of Burr Ridge
May 28.2013

Motion was made by Trustee Paveza and seconded by Trustee Ruzak to reclassi! the Public
Works Operations Supervisor from range 1 10 to l08A

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
AYES: 6 - Trustees Paveza, Ruzak, Franzese, Grasso, Bolos and Manieri
NAYS: 0-None
ABSENT: 0-None
There being six affrrmative votes, the motion carried

CONSIDERATION OF RECOMMENDATION TO RENAME WATER/SEWER
DIVISION AND FORESTRY DIVISION "CREW LEADERS" TO SUPERVISORS"
The Village Administrator presented the Public Works Director's recommendation to rename
Water/Sewer Division and Forestry Division Crew Leaders to Supervisors.

Motion was made by Trustee Bolos and seconded by Trustee Manieri to rename Water/Sewer
Division and Forestry Division Crew Leaders to Supervisors.

On Roll Call, Vote Was:
AYES: 6 - Trustees Bolos, Manieri, Paveza, Franzese, Grasso and Ruzak
NAYS: 0-None
ABSENT: 0-None
There being six affirmative votes, the motion carried

ADJOURN REGULAR MEETING Motion was made by Trustee Grasso and seconded
by Trustee Paveza that the Regular Meeting of May 28, 2013 be adjoumed.

On Voice Vote, the motion carried and the Regular Meeting of May 28, 2013 was adjoumed at
9:50 p.m.

Karen J. Thomas
Village Clerk
Bun Ridge, Illinois

Steven S. Stricker
Village Clerk Pro-Tempore
Burr Ridge, Illinois

APPROVED BY the President and Board of Trustees this dav of
2013.

r 0090



Burr Ridge Veterans Memorial Committee 5B
Minutes of Meeting Wednesday Apil 24th,2013

l. Meeting called to order by Chairman Leonard Ruzak at 4:00 P.M'

2. Roll Call

Present in addition to Chairman Leonard Ruz-ak- .lack Schaus' Ken

Thompson. John Moskal, Mickey Straub. and Russell Smith'

Absent: .Iohn Curin. and CodY Curin

Guest: Barb Popp. Executive Secretary. and Nora Hanlon.

3. Minutes of the previous meeting of April 10'I, 2013, were read. Motion to accept

minutes by Ken Thompsonl sccond by Jack Schaus. Motion carried'

4. written Financial Report by.lack Schaus, Treasurer. showed current balance of
$35.645.55 (March). Motion to accept Treasurer's report by John Moskal; second by

Russell Smith. Motion Carried.

).

1.

8.

6.

OId Business:
Reviewed upcoming Armed Forces Day tasks for the May I 8th '

The committee approved for $e $550 expense for the Band for Armed Forces Day.

Darien National buard will provide two vehicles and four soldiers for May 18s'

cody curin will obtain the color Guard again this year, while John Moskal will

inquire on getting a WWII airplane "fly over" for our Armed Forces Day event'

Master of ceremony this year will be newly elected Mayor Mickey Straub'

Len Ruzak and Jack Schaus stilt seeking a vocalist fiom one ofthe local schools

Jack Schaus received approval for purchasing the Patriol Award to be presented

During Armed l-orces DaY.

New Business:
Chairman Leonard Ruzali made recommendation to purchase L.E.D lights and

plantings for the Eagle Statue. Jack Schaus rerninded Comminee on the May 27"'

Memorial Day r.'u'reath placement al7:45 A.M'

General Discussion:
None

Adjournmcnt:

Motion b-v Mickey Straub to adjoum; second b1'Ken Thompson' Motion carried'

fr,f"oing ua.ior-"i at 5:00 P.M. Next meeting is Wednesday' Mayf*r' 2013'
27



DRAFT 5c
PLAN COMMISSION/ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

VILLAGE OF BURR RIDGE

MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING OF

JUNE 3.20T3

1. ROLLCALL

The Regular Meeting of the Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals was called to
order at 7:30 P.M. at the Bun Ridge Village Hall, 7660 County Line Road, Burr Ridge,
Illinois. by Chairman Trzupek.

ROLL CALL was noted as follows:
PRf,SENT: 5 - Cronin, Stratis, Grunsten, Hoch, and Trzupek
ABSENT: None
Also present was Community Development Director Doug Pollock

2. APPROVAL OF PRIOR MEETING MINUTES

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Hoch and SECONDED by Commissioner
Grunsten to approve minutes of the April 15, 2013 Plan Commission meeting.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:

AYES: 4 - Hoch, Grunsten, Stratis, and Trzupek
NAYS: 0 - None
ABSTAIN: 1 - Cronin
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 4-0.

3. PUBLICHf,ARINGS

Chairman Trzupek confirmed all present who wished to give testimony at the public
hearings and introduced the public hearings as follows.

A. L08-2013:200 Burr Ridge Parkway (Dao Restaurant); Special Use

Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Pollock to provide a summary of this public hearing.

Mr. Pollock described the petition as follows: In 2011 the petitioner expanded the
restaurant to incorporate an additional tenant space in the shopping center. This petition
seeks to extend the outdoor dining area in front of this additional storefront space while
also removing some of the outdoor dining area from the opposite end of the expanded
storefront.



06103 /2013 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 2 of 9

Chairman Trzupek asked for comments fiom the petitioner.

Mr. Frank Strahan, contractor for the owner, said that he has nothing to add to the staff
report but he did show a sample of the metal railing.

Chairman Trzupek asked for public comments and there were none. He then asked for
questions and comments from the Plan Commission.

Chairman Trzupek noted that the site plan showed wider gaps between the vertical
members of the railing than the typical code maximum of 4 inches. Mr. Strahan said that
they would use a railing with a maximum 4 inch gap as required by code.

Commissioner Cronin asked if there had been any complaints about the restaurant or
outdoor dining area. Mr. Pollock said he was not aware of any complaints.

Commissioner Stratis asked if the railing was anchored to the concrete. Mr. Strahan said
that it would be anchored to the concrete and remain up throughout the winter months.

Commissioner Grunsten asked if there would be access to the outdoor dining area from
the new hibachi restaurant. The owner was present and said that there would be access
from both parts ofthe restaurant.

In response to Commissioner Hoch, the owner said there would be planters throughout
the outdoor dining area. Commissioner Hoch also asked about the design on the railing.
Mr. Strahan said there would be no diamond or circle pattems as shown in the drawings.
He anticipated it would a simple vertical railing.

Chairman Trzupek read the conditions recommended by staff and asked the petitioner if
they agreed with these conditions. The owner stated that she did agree.

There being no further questions or comments, Chairman Trzupek asked for a motion to
close the hearing.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Cronin and SECONDED by Commissioner
Stratis to close the hearing for 2-08-2013.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES: 5 - Cronin, Stratis, Hoch, Grunsten, and Tranpek
NAYS: 0 - None
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

Chairman Trzupek asked for a motion regarding this petition.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Hoch and SECONDED by Commissioner
Cronin to adopt the same findings of fact as were adopted in 201 I for the original special
use and to recommend approval ofa special use approval as per Section VIII.B.2.x ofthe



06 I 03 120 I 3 Regular Meeting
Plan Commissior/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 3 of9

Bun Ridge Zoning Ordinance to allow for the expansion and modification ofan outdoor
dining area for an existing restauant. subject to the following conditions:

A. Tables, chairs and umbrellas shall be removed during the winter season when the
outdoor dining area is not in use.

B. The concrete floor of the outdoor seating area shall be treated and cleaned before
and after each season to ensure the removal of all food stains and retum it to a
state consistent with other concrete sidewalks within County Line Square.

C. The outdoor dining area shall be restricted by the same hours of operation as the
restaunmt.

D. All facilities and the configuration of the outdoor dining area shall comply with
the submitted plans except that the design of the metal railing shall be subject to
the review and approval of the Community Development Director.

E. Music and all other amplified sound should be kept to a moderate level so it is
no1 audible from any property adjacent to County Line Square.

F. There shall be no text or logos on the umbrellas.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES: 5 Hoch, Cronin, Stratis, Grunsten, and Trzupek
NAYS: 0-None
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

B. L09-2013:60 Shore Drive (Muka); Special Use

Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Pollock to provide a summary of this public hearing.

Mr. Pollock introduced the hearing as follows: The petitioner seeks special use approval
for automobile sales and service in an existing building at 60 Shore Drive. The subject
property is improved with a 60,000 square foot warehouse building. There is already an
auto sales business in the building (Corvette Mike's). The subject business would be
similar except that it would specialize in the sales of pre-owned luxury automobiles.
They would occupy 7,400 square feet of the building.

Chairman Trzupek asked the petitioner for his presentation.

Mr. Rosso Boba stated that he is an owner ofthe business. He said he had nothing to add
to the staff report.

There being no one else in attendance to speak to this matter, Chairman Trzupek asked
for questions and comments from the Plan Commission.



06/03 /2O 13 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 4 of9

Commissioner Hoch asked if there were any current violations on the property. Mr.
Pollock said that other than the need for the special use, there were not violations that he
was aw e of at this time.

Commissioner Grunsten asked if this was their first time in the auto sale business. Mr.
Boba said they had been selling cars in Indiana for 20 years.

In response to Commissioner Grunsten, Mr. Boba said that all of their cars have been
moved inside the building and they will not keep any cars outside.

Commissioner Stratis asked about trash on the property. Mr. Boba said that he has
cleaned up the property and will continue to maintain the property.

In response to Commissioner Stratis, Mr. Boba explained the hybrid parking lot lights.
Mr. Boba said this is another business they have in the building, the business being the
manufacturing of self-sustaining lights.

Commissioner Stratis also asked about signs and noted that the sales tax figures provided
by the petitioner do not add up. Mr. Pollock said that they would likely be back for sign
approval as they would like a sign and any additional signage on the property would
require a variation.

Mr. Boba apologized for the errors in the sales tax numbers and said that perhaps the
accountant had included their other business in calculating the numbers.

Commissioner Cronin asked if the petitioner had an Illinois Dealers License. Mr. Boba
said they could not get the license until they have approval from the Village.

Commissioner Cronin asked about the number and types of cars. Mr. Boba said they
usually have 45 to 50 cars inside the building and they tumover l0 to 15 cars per month.
He said they are not exotic cars but are luxury cars such as Mercedes Benz and BMW.
He added that they will unload vehicles from a truck parked along the south side of the
building.

Chairman Trzupek asked about the service and repair. Mr. Boba said there is a service
bay and they do minor detailing and repairs but the send the cars out if they need more
work. He added that they now have 5 employees but would anticipate that going up to
15. He said that 95%o ofthe cars they sell are on site but they will occasionally search for
a specific car ifa customer requests.

Chairman Trzupek asked about an old van parked on the site. Mr. Boba said that is not
theirs.

Commissioner Hoch asked about the hours of operation. Mr. Boba said they would be 9
am to 8 pm Monday through Friday, 9 am to 6 pm on Saturdays, and closed on Sundays.



06 103 120 13 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 5 of9

Chairman Trzupek asked the petitioner if he agreed with the conditions recommended by
staff. After review, the petitioner said he agreed.

There being no further questions or comments, Chairman Trzupek asked for a motion to
close the hearing.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Grunsten and SECONDED by Commissioner
Cronin to close the hearing for Z-09-2013.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES: 5 -Grunsten, Cronin, Stratis, Hoch, and Trzupek
NAYS: 0-None
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Cronin and SECONDED by Commissioner
Stratis to accept the petitioners findings of fact as submitted and to recommend approval
of 2-09-2013, a special use as per Section X.F.2.a of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance
for an Automobile Sales and Service business in a GI General Industrial District, subject
to the following conditions:

A. The special use permit shall be limited to the sales of pre-owned luxury
automobiles with minor detailing and repairs.

B. The special use shall be limited to the 7,400 square feet of floor area as
designated on the site plan.

C. The special use permit shall be limited to Brand Max Motors and shall
expire at such time that Brand Max Motors no longer occupies the space at
60 Shore Drive or at which time there is an assignment or termination of
the lease for the space at 60 Shore Drive.

D. Outside display and/or storage of any goods, materials, and automobiles
shall be prohibited.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES: 5 - Cronin, Stratis, Hoch, Grunsten, and Trzupek
NAYS: 0 - None
MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

C. 7-10-2013:15W308 North Frontage Road @ryjak); Special Use

Chairman Tranpek asked Mr. Pollock to provide a summary of this public hearing.

Mr. Pollock introduced the hearing as follows: The petitioner requests special use
approval for the continued use of the property for an automobile repair and service
business with limited outside storage of automobiles. In 2011 the petitioner was granted
a temporary special use for automobile service with limited outside storage of vehicles



06/03 120 13 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 6 of9

for sale. The petitioner's business powder coats and installs automobile parts (for
example, wheels). The previous special use was temporary for two reasons. There were
prior property maintenance violations and the two year time period would allow the
Village to determine if the property was going to be properly maintained. Also, the plan
commission indicated that they would like to see the property rezoned to the Tl District
but accepted this use as an interim use.

Chairman Trzupek asked the petitioner for comments.

Mr. Richard Bryjak said he had nothing to add to the staffreport.

There being no public comments, Chairman Trzupek asked for questions and comments
from the Plan Commission.

Commissioner Cronin asked about occupancy of the other buildings on the site. Mr.
Pollock said that the owner uses one of the buildings for storage. Mr. Bryjak said there
was an office in the other building.

The other Commissioners said they had no further questions.

Chairman Trzupek asked the petitioner if he agreed with the conditions recommended by
staff. Mr. Bryjak said he agreed with those conditions.

There were no more questions or comments from the Plan Commission. Chairman
Trzupek asked for a motion to close the public hearing.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner
Cronin to close the hearing for 2-10-2013.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES:
NAYS:

5 - Stratis, Cronin, Grunsten, Hoch, and Trzupek
0 - None

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Stratis and SECONDED by Commissioner
Cronin to adopt the findings of fact from the 2011 special use approval and to
recommend approval of 2-10-2013, a special use as per Section VllI.C.2 of the Burr
Ridge Zoning Ordinance for the continued use of the property for an automobile repair
and service business with limited outside storage of automobiles, subject to the following
conditions:

The special use shall be restricted to the current tenant and owner and shall be
limited to the powder coating of automobile parts and related work.

The special use may include outside storage of operable vehicles located
immediately behind the building at 15W308 North Frontage Road and with said

A.

B.



06/03 /20 13 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 7 of9

storage not exceeding 5 vehicles. No wrecked, unlicensed, or inoperable vehicles
shall be stored on the property at any time.

C. The special use shall be for a limited period of time not to exceed 2 years.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:
AYES:
NAYS:

5 - Stratis, Cronin, Crunsten, Hoch, and Trzupek
0 - None

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

D. V-03-2013: 861 I Crest Court (Schulz); Variation

Chairman Trzupek asked Mr. Pollock to provide a summary of this public hearing.

Mr. Pollock introduced the hearing as follows: The petitioner requests a variation to
permit a fence that exceeds the mrximum permitted height of 5 feet. The homeowner
seeks to construct a swimming pool and patio improvements for an existing home. A
requirement ofthe Village's Building Ordinance is that the pool be enclosed with a fence.
In this particular case, the petitioner is challenged by a significant change in gade and
the need to construct retaining walls around the pool and patio area. As a result, the
fence that is proposed for the pool has to cross the retaining walls at a 90 degree angle
which results in the fence exceeding the maximum height permitted by the Zoning
Ordinance (4 foot fence plus 3.5 foot retaining wall).

Chairman Trzupek asked the petitioner for comments.

Mr. David Schulz, architect for the property owner, added that the fence cannot be seen
from any adjacent property. He said that the pool and fence sit 4 feet below the street
level and with the berming and landscaping, the fence will not be seen.

Chairman Trzupek asked for public comments. There being no public comments,
Chairman Trzupek asked for questions and comments from the Plan Commission.

chairman Trzupek asked about other options that would not require the fence to cross the
retaining walls. Mr. Pollock said that is possible but due to the grade change, it would
make the pool and sunounding patio extremely small.

Commissioner Hoch asked the petitioner if they had the approval of the Homeowners
Association. Mr. Schulz said they did.

Commissioner Stratis said he had no further questions and believes the variation meets
the standards for a variation.

There were no more questions or comments from the Plan Commission. Chairman
Trzupek asked for a motion to close the public hearing.



06/03 /2013 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 8 of9

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Cronin and SECONDED by Commissioner
Hoch to close the hearing for V-03-2013.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

A MOTION was made by Commissioner Grunsten and SECONDED by Commissioner
Cronin to accept the petitioners findings of fact as submitted and to recommend approval
of V-03-2013, a variation from Section IV.J.l of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance to
permit a fence that exceeds the maximum permitted height of 5 feet, subject to
compliance with the submitted plans.

ROLL CALL VOTE was as follows:

AYES:
NAYS:

AYES:
NAYS:

5 - Cronin, Hoch, Stratis, Grunsten, and Trzupek
0 - None

5 - Grunsten, Cronin, Stratis, Hoch, and Trarpek
0 - None

MOTION CARRIED by a vote of 5-0.

4, CORRESPONDENCE

There was no discussion regarding the correspondence.

5. OTHERCONSIDERATIONS

A. PC-04-2013: 15W150 South Frontage Road (Odyssey Hotels): pUD pre-
Application Review

Mr. Pollock said that the Zoning ordinance requires a pre-application review by the plan
commission for all Plarured Unit Developments. He said a hotel developer has entered
into a contract to purchase the 4.4 acre property located between South Frontage Road
and 75"' Street and between the ESA Hotel and the Quality Inn Hotel. The developer
proposes to construct two five-story hotel buildings. The proposed development requires
a Planned Unil Development to allow more than one building on a lot, to allow the
maximum height to exceed three stories, to allow the floor area ratio to exceed 0.25, and
to allow a reduced front yard setback.

The developer, Mr. Rachit Dhingra, introduced himself and his construction manager,
Mr. Eric Augt. They presented the site plan and building elevations to the Commission.

chairman Trzupek asked about the location of dumpsters next to the house on 75th street
and asked about the alignment ofthe driveway on South Frontage Road.

commissioner Hoch asked about the need for a hotel and suggested a market study with
occupancy rates ofexisting hotels in Burr fudge.



06 103 120 13 Regular Meeting
Plan Commission/Zoning Board Minutes
Page 9 of9

commissioner Stratis asked about the lighting plan. Mr. pollock suggested that the
petitioner refer to the parking lot lighting standards in the Zoning ordinance and provide
a lighting plan for the public hearing.

commissioner stratis recommended a fence to be located along the south lot line and
wrapping around the south po(ion of the side lot lines. He said this may deter some
crime that occurs in parking lots.

There was a general discussion regarding the sight lines from the residential area to the
south as well as the signs on the property. It was suggested that the developer provide
perspective or cross section drawings showing differenl views fiom the residential areas.

There was also discussion regarding the elevations and building materials. chairman
Trzupek noted that the EIFS indicated on the vertical panels of the Hampton building
should be changed and recommended that EIFS not be ujed on the hotel canopy.

Mr. Pollock noted that this was a pre-application review and he will continue to work
with the developer to incorporate the commission's recommendations before the public
hearing.

6. FUTURESCHEDULEDMEETINGS

chairman Trzupek noted that there would not be a quorum for the June l7,2ol3 meeting
and therefore, that meeting would be canceled. He said that there would be a special
meeting on July I to make up for the canceled meeting.

7. ADJOURNMENT

A MorIoN was made by commissioner cronin and sECONDED by commissioner
Hoch to ADJOURN the meeting at 9:23 p.m. ALL MEMBERS VO,iING AyE, the
meeting was adjoumed at 9:23 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted:
J. Douglas Pollock, AICP July 1,2013



MINUTES

"l"K':"'f fi l*ff t:Ifl""Y,1'fr IX'
fune 3, 2013

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 7 :02 p.m. by Mayor Mickey Straub.

ROLI CAIL

5D

Present: Mayor Mickey Straub, Trustees Len Ruzak, Guy Franzese, fohn Manieri, Diane
Bolos and Janet Ryan Grasso

Absent: Trustee Al Paveza

PLITN COMMISSION INTERVIEWS

The Board members present conducted four preliminary interviews with residents
interested in serving on the Plan Commission as follows:

7:10 P.M. - Craig Buckridge
7:30 P.M. - Bhagwan Sharma
B:10 P.M. - lim Broline
B:40 P.M. - Ellen Raymond

DISCUSSION OF INTERVIEWS

The Board members agreed to postpone discussing these four candidates until after
additional interviews are conducted within the next few weeks. Suggested dates for
interviews were Monday, fune 17, at 7:00 p.m. or Wednesday, June 1.9, at 7:00 p.m. Mayor
Straub stated that he would direct Village Administrator Steve Stricker to obtain everyone's
preference out ofthese two dates and, once determined, coordinate an interview schedule
with selected candidates. The Board agreed that a notification of the openings and the
pending interviewing/appointment process should be sent to all current members of the
various Boards and Commissions, offering them the opportunity to apply.

AD'OURNMENT

A motion was made by Trustee f ohn Manieri to adjourn the Special Village Board meeting.
The motion was seconded by Trustee Len Ruzak and approved by a vote of 5-0. The
Special meeting was adjourned at 9:47 p.m.

MS:bp



6n
ORDINANCE NO.

ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 2.67
OF ARTICLE XI OF CTIAPTER 2 OF

THE BURR RIDGE MTJNICIPAL CODE

.WHEREAS, pursuant to the Illinois Open Meeting Act an open meeting of a

public body is to include an opportunity for persons to address the public officials; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Illinois Open Meetings Act and other applicable

law, the Village of Burr Ridge is expressly authorized to regulate its board meeting

process relative to the opportunity for the public to address public officials under the

rules established and recorded by the public body; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Burr Ridge has determined that the additional rules

of procedure set forth herein to structure the public comment opportunity at its

meetings will promote the efficient and effective conduct of meetings by the Board of

Trustees and serve the best interests ofthe Village and its residents.

THEREFORE, BE IT ORDNNED by the President and Board of Trustees of

the Village of Burr Ridge, DuPage and Cook Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section r: That Section 2.67 of Article XI of Chapter z of the Burr Ridge

Municipal Code entitled "Rules of Order" setting forth certain procedures of the Board

of Trustees at its meetings, be and is hereby amended to add at the end ofthe current 15

rules set forth therein, a new r6th rule entitled "Rule 16. Audience Comment.", such

new rule to read in its entirety as follows:

"Rule 16. Audience Comment. As set forth in Rule r of the Rules of Order above,
which establishes the order ofbusiness for the Board of Trustees at its regular
meetings, there shall be two "Audience" comment periods at such meetings. The
first audience comment period shall precede the consideration by the Board of

309769't



Trustees of its business agenda for the meeting, as established in the order of
business for the Board. The other audience comment period shall follow the
consideration ofthe business agenda by the Board of Trustees for the meeting, as
established in the order of business for the Board.

To promote the efficient conduct ofbusiness by the Board of Trustees for the
Board and the audience, the first audience comment period shall be for
members of the public to address any of those matters listed on that meeting
agenda ofthe Board of Trustees for the meeting, ifsuch resident cannot remain at
the meeting until the agenda item is heard. During the other audience comment
period, the public shall be allowed comment on matters related to the business of
the Village of Burr Ridge generally. The time allotted for public comment shall
not exceed five minutes for any one group or individual, subject to reasonable
extension at the discretion of the President. For special meetings of the Board,
public comment must be addressed to that matter or matters listed on the agenda
for that special meeting."

Section z: That this Ordinance shall be in fulI force and effect, from and after

its passage and approval as provided by law.

PASSED this _ day of 2013, pursuant to a roll call vote

of the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Burr fudge as follows :

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED by President of the Village of Burr Ridge this day of

2013.

Village President

ATTEST:

309769_1

Village Clerk



7nRESOI,UITION NO.

RESOLIITION ADOPTING THE PREVAIIJING WAGE RATES
FOR LABORERS, WORKERS AI\ID MECHANICS EMPLOYED IN

PT'BLIC WORKS OF THE VILI.AGE OF BIIRR RIDGE
COOK AND DU PAGE COI'NTIES, ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, tshe State of Illinois has enacE.ed "An Act

regul-at.ing wages of laborers. mechanics and oEher workers

employed in any public works by t.he State, County. City or any

public body or any polit.ical subdivisj-on or by any one under

cont.ract for public works," approved June 25, 1941, as amended,

being Chapt.er 820 ILCS 130/1-12, rllinois Compiled Statues, and

IVHEREAS, lhe aforesaid Act requires that. the president. and

Board of Trustsees of the Village of Burr Ridge investigat.e and

ascercain the prevailing rat.e of wages as defined in said Act

for laborers. mechanics and oEher workers in tshe Ioca11ty of

Cook County and DuPage County employed j-n performing

construction of public works, for saj-d Vil1age.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF

TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF BI'RR RIDGE, COOK NiID DU PAGE

COUIIIIES, IIJIJINOI S, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: To the extent and as required by '.An AcE

regulating wages of laborers, mechanics and other workers

employed in any public works by Stat.e, Countsy, City or any

public body or any polit.ical subdivision or by anyone und.er

contract for publi.c works, ..approved June 2G. 1941, as amended,



t.he general prevailing rate of wages in this locality for

laborers, mechanics and oEher workers engaged in construcEion of

public works coming under t.he jurisdicEj.on of the Village is

hereby ascertained !o be tshe same as lhe prevailing rate of

wages for consEruction work in Cook Count.y and Dupage County

area as determined by the Department of Labor of the Stsatse of

fl-linois as of June, 201,3, a copy of that determination being

att.ached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.

required by said AcE, any and all revisions of the prevailing

rate of wages by the Department. of Labor of the StsaEe of

Illinois shal-l- supersede Ehe Department., s \Tune det.erminat.ion and

apply to

Village.

keep available for

main office of the

of such prevailing

any and a1I public works construct.ion undert.aken by the

The definition of any t.erms appearing in this

i-n aforesaid Act shal1 be theResolution which are al-so used

same as in said Act.

Section 2: NoEhing herej-n contained sha11 be construed

to apply said general prevailing ratse of wages as herein

ascertained to any work or employment except public works

consEruction of lhe Village Eo the exE.end required by the

aforesaid Act .

Section 3: The Village Clerk shall- publicly post or

inspection by any j-nterested party in t.he

Village this determinat.ion or any revj-sions

rate of wage. A copy of this determination or

dUaren\,rcvailin gwageresolution.doc



of the current revised

then in effects shall be

Section 4 3 The

det.ermination of prevailing rate of wages

attached to aII contracc specifications.

vj-Ilage Clerk sha11 maiL a copy of this

determination to any employer, and to any associatj-on of

employers and to any person or association of empl-oyees who have

filed their names and addresses, request.ing copj-es of any

detsermination stat.ing the part.icular rates and t.he particufar

class of workers whose wages wiII be affected by such rates.

section 5: The Village Clerk shall- prompt.ly file

certified copy of this Resolution with both the Secretary

Stat.e Index Division and the Department of Labor of Ehe St.ate of

I1linois.

Section 6: The Village Cferk shall- cause Eo be

published in a newspaper of general circulation within the area

a copy of lhis Resolution, and such publication shalf constitute

notice that. the detsermination is ef fecti-ve and Chat thi-s i-s the

determinat.ion of this public body.

ADOPTED this lOEh day of ,June, 2013 by the Corporate

Authorilies of t.he Village of Burr Ridge on a rol-1 call vote as

fol lows :

a

of

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSElil]T:

d\karen\prevail ingwageresolution. doc



APPROVED by the President. of t.he Village of Burr Ridge this

l OEh day of \Tune, 2 O l-3 .

Village President

ATTEST :

village Clerk

d\karen\prevailingwageresolution.doc



Cook County Prevailing Wage for June 2013 Page I of 8

Vac Trng

Cook County Prevailing Wage for June 2013
(Sc. crph[,tion ofcolumn hciditrSs rl bottom ofs.g.s)

Trade Name RG TYP C Base FRMAN M-F>8 OSA OSH H/W Pensn

ASBESTOS ABT-GEN
ASBESTOS ABT-MEC
BOILERMAKER
BRICK MASON
CARPENTER
CEMENT MASON
CERAMIC TILE FNSHER
COMM. ELECT.
ELECTRIC PWR EQMT OP
ELECTRIC PWR GRNDMAN
ELECTRIC PWR LINEMAN
ELECTR]CIAN
ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR
FENCE ERECTOR
GLAZIER
HT/FRoST INSUI,AToR
IRON WORKER

LABORER
I,ATHER
MACI{INIST
MARBLE F]NISHERS
MARBLE MASON
MATERIAL TESTER I
MATERIAIS TESTER I1
MILLWRIGHT
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGTNEER
OPERATING ENG]NEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERATING ENGINEER
OPERAT]NG ENGINEER
ORNAMNTL IRON WORKER
PAINTER
PAINTER SIGNS
PlLEDRTVER
PIPEFITTER
PLASTERER
PLUMBER
ROOFER

ArL 35.200 36.700 1.5
BLD 34 .150 36.660 1.5
BLD 43.450 41 .360 2.0
BLD 40.580 44.750 1.5
ArL 42.520 44.s20 L.5
AIL 42.350 44.350 2.0
BLD 34.440 0.000 2.0
BLD 37.500 40.150 1. s
AIL 43 .3s0 48.350 1.5
ALL 33 .810 48.3s0 1.5
AIL 43 .3s0 48.350 1. s
AIL 42.OOO 44.800 1.5
BLD 49.080 55.215 2 .0
ArL 34.840 36 - 840 1.5
Br,D 39.500 41.000 1.5
BLD 45.550 48.0s0 1.5
AJIL 40.7s0 42.'150 2.0
Ar,L 37.000 37.750 1.5
AIL 42.520 44.520 1.5
BLD 43.5s0 45.050 1. s
Ar,L 29 .100 0.000 1.5
BLD 39.880 43.870 1.5
AIL 27 .OOO 0.000 1. s
ALL 32.000 0.000 1.5
AIL 42.520 44.520 1.s
BLD 1 45.100 50.100 2.0
BLD 2 44.800 50.100 2.0
BLD 3 42.250 50.100 2.0
BLD 4 40.500 50.100 2.0
BLD 5 49.850 s0.100 2.0
Br,D 6 47.100 50.100 2.0
BLD 7 49.100 50.100 2.0
FLT 1 51.300 51.300 L.5
FLT 2 49.800 51.300 1.5
FLT 3 44.350 51- 300 1- s
FLT 4 36.850 51.300 1.5
FLT 5 52 .800 s1.300 1. s
HWY 1 44.300 48.300 1.5
t+$N 2 43.750 48.300 1.5
HWY 3 41.700 48.300 1- 5
HWY 4 40.300 48.300 1.5
HWY 5 39.100 48.300 1.5
HWY 5 47.300 48.300 1.5
HWY 7 4s.300 48.300 1.5
AJJL 42.900 45.400 2.0
Ar,L 40.000 44 - 750 1. s
BLD 33 .920 38.090 1.5
AIL 42.520 44.520 L.5
BLD 45.050 48.050 1.5
BLD 40.250 42 - 670 t.s
BLD 45.000 47.000 1.5
BLD 38.350 41.350 1.5

!.5 2.0 t2.1a
1.5 2.0 10.82
2.0 2.0 6.970
1.5 2.0 9.550
7.5 2.0 73 -29
1.5 2.0 rL.2t
1.5 2-0 9-700
t.s 2.0 a.420
1.s 2.0 10.38
1.5 2.0 8.090
1.5 2.0 10.38
L.5 2.0 72 -A3
2.0 2.0 11.88
t.5 2.0 72.A6
2-O 2.0 LL.99
1.5 2.0 10.82
2.0 2. O 73 .20
1.5 2.0 13.38
7.5 2 -O L) -29
1.s 2-0 5.130
r-.5 2.0 9. sso
1. s 2.0 9.550
1.5 2.0 13.38
1.5 2.0 13.38
L.5 2-O t3 .29
2.0 2.0 L6 .60
2.0 2 -O 16.60
2.0 2.0 L6.50
2 -O 2.O t6.60
2.0 2.0 16.60
2.0 2.0 L6 -60
2.0 2.0 L6 -60
1.5 2.0 14.40
1.5 2.0 14.40
r.s 2.0 L4.40
1.5 2.0 14.40
l.s 2.0 L4.40
1.s 2.0 15.60
1.5 2-0 16.60
1.5 2.0 15.50
1.5 2.0 16-50
1.5 2.0 15.60
1.5 2.0 15.60
1.5 2.0 15.60
2 .0 2.0 13 .11
1.5 1.5 9.750
1.5 1.s 2.500
L.5 2.0 ),3.29
1.5 2.0 I .460
1.5 2.0 10.85
1.5 2.0 12 .53
1.5 2-0 8.280

9.020 0.000 0. s00
10.65 0.000 0.720
14.55 0.000 0.350
12.00 0.000 0.970
12 .7s 0.000 0.630
11.40 0.000 0.320
5.930 0.000 0.610
9.980 1.100 0.700
13 .50 0.000 0.430
10.53 0.000 0.330
13 . s0 0.000 0.430
13.07 0.000 0.7s0
12 .71 3.930 0.600
10 .57 0.000 0.300
14.30 0.000 0.840
11.85 0.000 0. ?20
19. 09 0.000 0.350
9.520 0.000 0.500
12 . ?5 0.000 0.530
8.950 1.8s0 0.000
11.75 0.000 0.620
11.75 0.000 0.730
9.520 0 .000 0.500
9.520 0.000 0. s00
12 .75 0.000 0.630
11.05 1.900 1.250
11.05 1.900 1.250
11.05 1.900 1.250
11.05 1.900 1.2so
11 .05 1.900 1.250
11.0s 1.900 1.250
11,.05 1- 900 1.250
9.550 L.900 1.250
9.550 1.900 1.250
9-550 1.900 1.250
9. ss0 1.900 1.250
9.550 1.900 1.2s0
11.05 1.900 1.2s0
11- 05 1. 900 1.250
11.05 1.900 1.2s0
11 .0s 1.900 1.250
11 .05 1.900 1- 250
11.05 1.900 1.250
11.05 1.900 1.250
15.40 0.000 0.500
11. 10 0.000 0.770
2.710 0.000 0.000
12.75 0-000 0.530
14 .85 0.000 1.780
10.94 0.000 0.550
10.05 0.000 0.880
8.770 0.000 0.430

http://www. state.il. us/agency/idol/PWRates/ I 3-06JudCOOK9999. htm 614t2013



Cook County Prevailing Wage for June 2013 Page 2 of 8

SHEETMETAI WORKER

SIGN }ANGER
SPRIN(IER FITTER
STEEL ERECTOR
STONE I'IASON
TERRAZZO F]NISHER
TERRAZZO MASON
TILE MASON
TRAFFIC SAFETY WRKR
TRUCK DRIVER
TRUCK DRIVER
TRUCK DRIVER
TRUCK DRIIER
TRUCK DRIVER
TRUCK DRIVER
TRUCK DRIVER
TRUCK DRI!'ER
I'UCKPOINTER

BLD 40 - 8r-0
BLD 30 - 210
BLD 49.200
ALL 40.7s0
BLD 40.680
BLD 35.510
BLD 39 -370
BLD 41.430
HWY 2A .2sO

E Ar,L 1 33-8sO
E AIL 2 34 . 100
E AIr. 3 34.300
E ALL 4 34.500
w ALL 1 32.550
w AI"L 2 32.700
w AI,L 3 32.900
w AIrL 4 33.100

Br,D 40.950

44.0?0 1.5
30.710 1.s
51 .200 1.5
42.750 2.0
44 . 750 1.5
0.000 1.5

42.3'70 L.5
4s.430 2.0
29 . 850 1. s
34 .500 1. s
34 - 500 1.5
34 . 500 1. s
34.500 1.s
33.100 1. s
33 . 100 1.5
33 . 100 1.5
33.100 1.5
41.950 1.5

1.5 2 .O 10 - 13 17.79 0.000 0.530
1.s 2-0 4 .850 3.030 0.000 0.000
1.5 2.0 10.2s 8.350 0.000 0.450
2.0 2.0 13.20 19.09 0.000 0.350
1. s 2.0 9.550 12.00 0.000 0.970
1.5 2.0 9.'700 9.320 0.000 0.400
1.5 2.0 9.700 10.65 0. 000 0.550
7.5 2 .O 9 - 700 8.540 0.000 0.710
1.5 2-0 4-A96 4.17s 0.000 0-000
1.s 2-0 I .150 8.s00 0.000 0.150
1.5 2.0 8. r.so 8.500 0.000 0.1s0
1.5 2.0 8.150 8.500 0.000 0.1s0
1. s 2.0 8.150 8. s00 0.000 0.150
1.5 2.0 5.500 4.350 0 .000 0.000
1.5 2.0 5.500 4.350 0.000 0.000
7.5 2.O 5. 500 4.350 0.000 0.000
L.s 2.0 5. 500 4.3s0 0.000 0.000
L.5 2.0 8.180 10.82 0.000 0.940

Legend:
RG (Regj,on)
TYP (Trade lype - A11, Highyay. Bui lding, Floating, oi1 & chip,Rivers)
c (class)
Base (Baae Wage Rate)
FRIIAN (Forenan Rate)
M-F>8 (OT required for any hour greater rhan I uorked each day, Uon through Fri.
OSA (Overtifte (OT) is required for every hour {orked on Sarurday)
OSg (Overtime ls required for every hour lrorked on Sunday and Holidays)
tllw (Health & welfare Insulance)
Pensn (Pension)
Vac {Vacatioo)
Trlrg (Training)

Explanations

COOK COI'NTY

The foflowing lists is considered as those days for hrhich hotiday rat.es
of wages for work performed apply: New years Day, Menorial Day,
Fourth of Jul-y, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, ChrisEnas Day and
Veterans Day in some classit icat ions/counties . Generally, any of
these holidays which falf on a sunday is celebrated ou the following
Monday. This then makes work performed on that Monday payable at the
appropriaEe overtime raEe for holiday pay. Conmon practice i.n a given
loca] may alter certain days of celebration. If in doubE, please
check $rith IDOL.

TRUCK DRIVERS (WEST) - That part of the county west. of Barrington
Road -

EXPI,ANATION OF CI,ASSES

ASBESTOS - GENERAL - removal of asbestos mat.erial/moId and hazardous
maEerials from any place in a buildj,ng, includj.ng rnechanical sysEems
where those mechanical systems are to be removed. This includes the
removal of asbestos nateriafs/moId and hazardous materials from
ductwork or pipes in a buildj-ng when the building is to be demolished
at Ehe time or at some close future date.
ASBESTOS - MECHANICAI - removal of asbestos maEerial from mechanical

hft p ://www. state. il.us/agency/idol/PWRates/ I 3 -06Jun/COOK9999. htm 6t4t2013



Cook County Prevailing Wage for June 2013

sysuems, such as pipes,
systerns are to renain.

CERAMIC TILE FINISHER

ducts, and boilers, where the mechanical

The grouting, cleaning, and polishing of af1 classes of t.i1e, wheEher
for interior or exterior purpoges, all burned, glazed or unglazed
products; all composition materials, granite ti1es, warning detectable
tj-Ies, cemenE t.iles, epoxy composiEe materials, pavers, glass,
mosaics, fiberglass, and all subsEitute materials, for tile made in
tile-1ike uniEs; all mixtures j-n tile like form of cement, metals, and
oEher materials that are for and intended for use as a finished floor
surface, sEair treads, promenade roofs, wa1ks, wa11s, ceilings,
swirnming poo1s, and all other places where tile is to forrn a finished
interior or exterior. The nixing of all settj.ng morEars including but
not limit.ed to Ehin-set mortars, epoxies, waIl nud, and any other
sand and cement mixtures or adhesj.ves when used in the preparaEion,
installation, repair, or maiutenance of tile and/or similar naEerials.
The handling and unloading of all sand, cement, 1ime, tiIe,
fixtures, equipmenE, adhesives, or any other materials to be used in
the preparation, installation, repair, or maintenance of tile and,/or
similar materials. Ceramic Tj.1e Finishers shall- fill all joints and
voids regardless of method on all tile work, parEicularly and
especially afuer iusEallatj.on of said tile work. Application of any
and all proEective coverings to a1I tl4)es of tile insEallations
including, but not be limited to, all soap conpounds, paper products,
tapes, and a1l polyeEhylene coverings, plywood, masonj-te, cardboard,
and any new tl.pe of products thaE may be used to prot.ect tile
installations, Blastrac equipmenE, and all floor scarifyiug equipment
used in preparing fl,oors Eo receive tiIe. The clean up and removal of
all hraste and maEerials. Af1 demoliEion of existing tile floors and
walls to be re-tlIed.

COMMI'NICATIONS ELECTRICIAN

Installation, operation, inspecEion, mainEenauce, repair and service
of radio, television, recording, voice sound vi.sion production and
reproduction, Eelephone and telephone interconnect, facsimile, data
apparatus, coaxial, fibre optic and wireless equipment, appfiances and
systems used for the transmission and reception of signals of any
nature, business, domestic, commercial, education, entertainment, and
residential purposes, ineluding buE not limited t.o, communication and
telephone, electronic and sound equipmenE, fibre opt.i-c and data
comrnunicatj-on systems, and the performance of any task directly
relaEed to such installation or service whether aE new or existing
sites, such Easks to include the placing of wire and cable and
electri.cal power conduit or oEher raceway work wi.thin the equipment
room and pulling wire and/or cable through conduit and the
installation of any incidenEal conduit, such that the employees
covered hereby can compfete any job in ful].

MARBLE FIN]SHER

Loading and unloading trucks, dist.ribution of a1l materials (a11
stone, sand, etc.), stocking of floors with material, performing all
rigging for heavy work, the handli.ng of all nat.erial t.hat may be
needed for Ehe installatj.on of such maEerials, building of
scaffolding, polishing if needed, patching, waxing of material if
damaged, pointj-ng up, caulking, groutj.ng and cleaning of marble,

Page 3 of 8

http://www. state. il. us/agency/idol/PWRates/ I 3 -06Jun/COOK9999. htm 614t2013



Cook County Prevailing Wage for June 2013

holding water on diamond or Carborundum blade or saw for setters
cutting, use of tub saw or any other saw needed for preparatj.on of
naterial, drilling of holes for wires that anchor material set by
setters, mixing up of molding plasEer for installation of material,
mixing up thin set for t.he j.nstallation of material, mixing up of sand
to cement. for the installat.j.on of naterial and such other work as may
be required in helping a Marble SetEer in the handling of all
material in the erection or inst.alLation of j-nterior marble, slate,
travertine, art marble, serpentine, alberene stone, blue stone,
granite and other sEones (meaning as to stone any foreign or domesCj-c
materj,als as are specified and used i.n building interiors and
exteriors and customarily known as stone in the trade), carrara,
sanionyx, vitrolit.e and similar opaque glass and the layj-ng of aI1
marble tile, terrazzo tile, slate tile and precast ti1e, steps, risers
treads, base, or any other material.s that may be used as substituEes
for any of the aforementioned materials and which are used on interi.or
and exterior whi.ch are installed in a similar manner.

MATERIAL TESTER I: Hand coring and drilfing for testing of macerials;
field inspeccion of uncured concrete and asphalt.

MATERIAI TESTER II: Field inspection of welds, structural stee1,
fireproofing, masonry, soi1. facade, reinforcing steel, formwork,
cured concrete, and concrete and asphalt batch plants; adjusting
proporEions of bituminous mixtures.

OPERATING ENGINEER - BUILDING

Class 1. Asphalt Plants; Asphalt Spreader; Autograde; Backhoes with
Caisson Attachment; BaEch Plant; Benoto (requires Two Engj.neers) i
Boiler and Throttle Valve; Caisson Rigs; Ceutral Redi-Mix plant;
Combinat.ion Back Hoe Front. End- Ioader Machine; Compressor and Throttle
Vafve; Concrete Breaker (Truck MounEed); Concrete Conveyor; Concrete
Conveyor (Truck Mounted); Concrete Paver Over 2ZE cu. ft; Concrete
Paver 278 cu. ft. and Under: Concrete placer; Concrete placing Boom;
Concrete Pump (Truck Mounted) ; ConcreEe Tower; Cranes, All; Cranes,
Hammerhead; Cranes, (cCI and similar 1f.pe); CreEer Crane; Spider
Crane; Crusher, stone, eEc.; Derricks, A11; Derrj-cks, Traveling;
Formless Curb and cutter Machiue; Grader, ElevaEing; crouting
Machines; Heavy Duty Self-propelled Transporter or prime Mover;
Highlift shovels or Front Endloader 2-L/4 yd. and over; Hoists,
Elevators, ouEside type rack and pinion and sirnilar machines; Hoists,
One, Two and Three Drum; Hoists, Two Tugger One Floor; Hydraulic
Backhoes; Hydraulic Boom Trucks; Hydro vac (and similar equipment);
Locomot.ives, A11; Motor Patrol; Lubricat.ion Technician; Manipulators;
Pj-1e Drivers and Skid Rig; post Hole Digger; pre-SEress Machine; pump
Cretes Dual Ram; Pump Cretes: Squeeze Cretes-Screw Type pumps; Gl.psum
Bulker and Pump; Raised and Blind Hole Dri11; Roto Mill crinder;
Scoops - Tractor Drawn; Slip-Form paver; Straddle Buggj-es; OperaEion
of Tie Back Machine; Tournapull; Tractor with Boom and Side Boom;
Trenchi.ng Machines.

Class 2. Boilers; Broom, A11 power propelled; Bulldozers; Concrete
Mixer (Two Bag and Over) ; Conveyor, portable; ForklifE Trucks;
Highlift Shovels or Front Endloaders utder 2-L/4 yd.; Hoists,
Aut.omat j-c; Hoists, Inside Elevators; Hoj-sts, Sewer Dragging Machine;
Hoists, Tugger Single Drum; Laser Screed; Rock Dri1l (Se1f:propelled);
Rock Drilf (Truck Mounted); Rollers, AI1; Steam cenerators; Tractors,

Page 4 of 8

http://www. state. il.us/agency/idol,rPWRates/ I 3 -06Jun/COOK9999.htm 6/412013



Cook County Prevailing Wage for June 2013

All; Tract.or Drawn Vibrat.ory RoLler; Winch Trucks with i'A,, Frame.

CLass 3- Air Compressor; Combination Small Equipment OperaEor;
Generators; Heaters, Mechanical; Hoists, fnside Elevat.ors (remodeling
or renovation virork ) ; Hydraulic Power Units (pile Driving, Extractlng,
and Drilling); Pumps, over 3,' (1 to 3 not to exceed a total of 3OO
ft.); Low Boys; Punps, Well Points; Welding Machines (2 through 5);
Winches, 4 SmalL Electric Drill Winches.

Class 4. Bobcats and/or other Skid Steer Loaders; Oilers; and Brick
Forklift.

Class 5. Assistant Craft Foreman-

Class 5. cradaIl.

Class 7. Mechanj.cs; welders.

OPERATING ENGINEERS - HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION

Class 1. AsphalE Plant; Asphalts Heater and planer Combination; Asphalt
Heat.er Scarfire; Asphalt Spreader; Autograder/GOMACO or other sirnilar
type rnachines: ABC paver; Backhoes with Caissou AEtachment; Ballast
RegulaEor; Belt Loader; Caisson Rigs; Car Dumper; Central Redi-Mix
Plant; Combination Backhoe Front Endloader Machine, (1 cu. yd. Backhoe
Bucket or over or with attachments); Colcrete Breaker (Truck
MounEed) ; Concrete Conveyor; Concrete paver over 27E cu. ft.; Concrete
Placer; Concret.e Tube Float.; Cranes, all atEachments; Cranes, Tower
Cranes of all Eypes: Creter Crane: Spider Crane; Crusher, Stone, etc.;
Derricks, A11, Derrick Boats; Derricks, Traveling; Dredges;
Elevators, OuEside type Rack & pinion and Simil,ar Machines; Formless
Curb and cutter Machine; Grader, Elevatingi crader, MoEor Grader,
Mot.or PaErol, Auto PaErol, Form crader, pu1l crader, Subgrader; Guard,
Rail Post Driver Truck Mounted; Hoists, One, Two and Three Drun; Heavy
Duty Seff-Propelled Transporter or pri.me Mover; Hydraulic Backhoes;
Backhoes with shear att.achments up Eo 40, of boom reach; Lubrj-cation
Technician; Manipulators; Mucking Machine; pile Drivers and Skid Rig;
Pre-Stress Machine; pump Cretes Dual Ram; Rock Dri11 _ Crawler or SkidRig; Rock Drill - Truck Mounted; Rock,/Track Tamper; Roto Mill-
Grj-nder; Slip-Form paver; Snow Melters; SoiI Test Dri1l Rig (Truck
Mounted); SEraddle Buggies; Hydraulic Telescoping Form (Tunnef);
OperaEion of Tieback Machine; Tractor Drawn Belt Loader; Tractor
Drawn Belt Loader (l{rith aEtached pusher - two engineers); Tractor with
Boom; TracEaire with AEtachments; Traffic Barrier Transfer Machine;Trenching; Truck Mounted Concrete pump with Boom; Raised or Blind HoleDrills ( Tunne1 Shaft); Underground Boring and.,/or Mining Machines 5ft.. in diameter and over tunnel, etc; Und.erground aoring and/or Mining
Machines under 5 ft.. in diameter; Wheel ExcavaEor; Wi.dener (APSCO).

Class 2. Bat.ch Plant; Bitumj-nous Mixer; Boiler and. ThrotCle Valve;Bulldozers; Car Loader Trailing Conveyors; Combination Backhoe FronE
Endloader Machine (Les6 than 1 cu. yd. Backhoe BuckeE or over or with
att.achmenEs); Compressor and Throttle Valve; Compressor, CommonReceiver (3); Concrete Breaker or Hydro Hammer; Coucrete criuding
Machine; ConcreEe Mixer or paver zS Series to and including Zz ci.ft.; Concrete Spreader; ConcreEe Curing Machine, Burfap Uachine,Belting Machj.ne and Sealing Machine; Concrete Wheel Saw; Conveyor MuckCars (Hag1und or Similar Type) ; Dri11s, AI1; Finishing Machine _

http://www.state.il.us/agency/idol/pWRates/ 1 3-06Jun/COOK9999.hftn

Page 5 of8

6/4/2013



Cook County Prevailing Wage for June 2013

Concrete; Highlift Shovels or Front Endloader; Hoj-st - Sewer Dragging
Machine; Hydraulic Boom Trucks (A1I Atstachments); Hydro-Blaster; Hydro
Excavating (excluding hose work); Laser Screed; All Locomotives,
Dinky; Off-Road Hauling Units (including articulating) Non
Self-Loading Ejection Dump; Pump Cretes; Squeeze Cretes - Scre\,rr 1f4)e
Pumps, Gl4)sum Bulker and Punp; Ro11er, AsphaLt; Rotary Snow pLows;
Rot.oti11er, Seaman, etc., self -propelled; Self -propelled Compactor;
Spreader - Chip - Stsone, etc.; Scraper - Single/'I\rrin Engj.nei/Eush and
Pu11; Scraper - Prime Mover in Tandem (Regardless of Size); Tractors
pulling attachments, Sheeps FooC, Disc, Compactor, etc-i Tug Boats.

Class 3. Boilers; Brooms, A11 Power Propelled; Cement Suppfy Tender;
Compressor, Common Receiver (2) i Concrete Mixer (Two Bag and Over);
Conveyor, Portable; Farn- q.!,e TracEors Used for Mowing, Seeding, etc.;
Forklift Trucks; crouting Machine; Hoists, Aut.omatic; Hoists, AI1
Elevators; Hoi,sts, Tugger single Drum; Jeep Diggers; Low Boys; pi-pe
Jacking Machj.nes; Post-Ho1e Digger; Power Saw, Corrcrete power Driven;
Pug Mi1ls; Rollers, other chan Asphalt; Seed and Straw Blower; St.eam
Generators; Stump Machine; Winch Trucks with ,'A', Frane; Work Boats;
Tamper - Form- MoEor Driven.

Class 4. Air Compressor; CombinaEion - Sma11 Equipment Operator;
Directional Boring Machine; ceneraEors; HeaEers, Mechanical; Hydraulic
Power Unit (Pi1e Driving, Extracting, or Drilling); Lighu plants, A11
(1 through 5); Pumps, over 3', (1 to 3 not to exceed a total of 3OO
ft.); Pumps, Well Points; Vacuun Trucks (excluding hose work); Welding
Machines (2 through 5); wj.nches, 4 Sma1l Electric Drill winches.

Class 5. Skidsteer Loader (a11); Brick Forklifts; Oilers.

Class 5. Field Mechanics and Fi.e1d welders

Class 7. Dowel1 Machine with Air Compressor; Gradall aud machines of
like naEure.

OPERATING ENGINEER - FLOATING

Class 1. Craft Foreman; Master Mechanic; Diver,/Wet Tender; Engineer;
Engineer (Hydrautic Dredge ) .

Class 2. Crane/Backhoe Operator; Boat Operator with towing
endorsernent; Mechanic/Welder; AssisEant Engineer (Hydraulic Dredge) ;
Ireverman (Hydraulic Dredge); Diver Tender.

CLass 3. Deck Equipment OperaEor, Machinerlman, Maintenance of Crane(over 50 ton capacj.ty) or Backhoe (115,000 1bs. or more); Tug/Launch
Operator; Loader/Dozer and like equipnent on Barge, Breakwater Wal1,
slip/Dock, or Scow, Deck Machinery, et.c.

Class 4. Deck EquipmenE Operator, Machineryman/ Fireman (4 EquipmenE
Units or More); Off Road Trucks; Deck Hand, Tug Engineer, Crane
MainEenance (50 Ton capacity and Under) or Backhoe weighing (115,000
pounds or less); Assistant Tug OperaEor.

Class 5. Friction or Lat.tice Boom Cranes.

TERRAZZO FINISHER

Page 6 of 8

http ://www.state.il.us/agency/idol/PWRates/ I 3-06Jun/COOK9999.htm 614t2013



Cook County Prevailing Wage for June 2013

The handling of sand, cement, marble chips, and all other materials
that may be used by the Mosaic Terrazzo Mechanic, and the mixing,
grinding, grouting, cleaning and sealing of all Marble, Mosaic, and
Terrazzo work, floors, base, stairs, and wainscoting by hand or
machine, and in addi.tsion, assisting and aiding Marble, Masonic, and
Terrazzo Mechanics -

TRAFFIC SAFETY

work associated with barricades, horses and drums used to reduce lane
usage on highh'ay work, the i.nstsaIlation and removal of temporary lane
markings, and the insEallation and removal, of Eemporary road signs.

TRUCK DRIVER . BUILDING, HEAVY AND HIG}IWAY CONSTRUCTION - EAST & WEST

Class 1. Two or three AxIe Trucks. A-frame Truck when used for
Eransportation puryoses; Air Compressors and weLding Machines,
including those pulled by cars, pick-up t.rucks and tract.ors;
Ambulances; Batch cate Lockersi Batch Hopperman; Car and Truck
Washers; Carry-a11s; Fork Lj.fts and Hoisters; Helpers; Mechanics
Helpers and Greasers; Oil Dist.ributors 2-man operation; pavement
Breakers; Pole Trailer, up Eo 40 feet; power Mower Tractors;
Self-propelled Chip Spreader; Skiprnan; Slurry Trucks, 2-man operaEion;
Slurry Truck Conveyor OperaEion, 2 or 3 rnan; Teamst.ers; Unskilled
Dumprnan; and Truck Drivers hauling warning lights, barri.cades, and
portable Eoilets on the job sj.Ee.

Page 7 of 8

Class 2. Four axle trucks; Dump
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, Euclids,
Turnat.railers when pulling other
similar equipment under 15 cubic
Ready-mi.x Plant Hopper Operator,

Crets and Adgetors under 7 yardsi
Hug Bot.Eom Dump Turnapulls or

than self-loading equipment or
yards; Mixer Trucks under 7 yards;

and Winch Trucks, 2 Ax1es.

Class 3. Five axl-e Erucks; Dump Crets and Adgetors Z yards and over;
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, Euclids, Hug Bot.Eom Dump Turnatrailers or
turnapulls when pulling other than self-loading equipment or simil-ar
equipment over 16 cubj,c yards; Explosives and/or Fission MaEerial
Trucks; Mixer Trucks 7 yards or over; Mobile Cranes vrhile in transit;
Oi1 Distributors, 1-nan operaEion; pole Trailer, over 40 feet; pole
and Expandable Traj-lers hauJ-ing mat.erial over SO feet long; S1urry
trucks, 1-man operation; winch trucks, 3 axles or more;
Mechanic--Truck welder and Truck Painter-

Class 4. Six axle trucks; Dual-purpose vehicles, such as mounted
crane t.rucks with hoist and accessories; Foreman; MasEer Mechanic;
Seff-loading equipment li.ke p.B. and trucks with scoops on t.he front.

OEher Classifications of Work:

For definitions of c lassi f icat.j,ons not otherwise seE out, Ehe
Department generally has on fi.le such definitions h'hich are
available. If a task to be perforned is not subjecE Eo one of the
classificaEions of pay set out, Ehe Departmeut will upon being
contact.ed state lrrhich neighboring counEy has such a classificaEion andprovide such raEe, such raEe being deemed to exist by reference in
this document.. If no neighboring county raEe applies to the task,
bhe Department shal1 undertake a special detenninati.on, such special
determj-nation being then deemed tso have existed under this
determination. If a project. requires these, or any classification not

http ://www. state. il.us/agency/idol/PWRates/ 1 3 -06Jur/COOK9999.htm 6/4/2013



Cook County Prevailing Wage for June 2013

listed, pfease conEact IDOL aE 217-182-L7LO for wage rates or
clarifications.

I,ANDSCAPING

Landscaping work falls under the existj-ng classifications for laborer,
operatsing engineer and tsruck driver. The h'ork perforrned by
Iandscape plantsman and landscape Laborer is covered by the existing
classification of laborer. The work performed by landscape operaEors
(regardless of equipment used or it.s size) is covered by the
classifications of operaEing engineer. The I'ork performed by
landscape truck drivers (regardless of size of truck driven) is
covered by the classifications of truck driver.

Page 8 of 8

http ://www.state. il.us/agency/idol/PWRates/ 1 3 -06Jun/COOK9999.htm 6/412013



Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2013 Page I of7

Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2013
(See erplrnrtion ofcolumn he.dings rt bottom ofwrge.)

Trade Name RG TYP C Base FRMAN M-F>8 OSA oSH H/w Pensn Vac Trng

ASBESTOS ABT-GEN AIL 36.200 35.700 1.5
ASBESTOS ABT-MEC BLD 34-150 35.660 1.5
BOILERMAKER BI,D 43.450 47 .360 2.O
BRICK MASON BLD 40.680 44.750 1.5
CARPENTER AtL 42.s20 44.520 1.5
CEMENT MASON AtL 38.000 40.000 2 - o
CERAMIC TILE FNSHER BLD 34.440 O.OOO 2-O
COMMI]NTCATION TECH BLD 32.650 34.750 L.5
ELECTRIC PWR EQMT Op ArL 35.510 49.750 1.5
ELECTR]C PWR GRNDMAN A],L 28.310 49.750 1.5
ELECTRIC PWR LINEMAN AIL 43.830 49.750 1.5
ELECTRIC PWR TRK DRV ALI, 29.3].0 49.750 I.5
ELECTRICIAN BI,D 36.200 39.820 1.5
ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR BLD 49.080 55.2L5 2.0
FENCE ERECTOR NE AIL 34.840 36.840 1.5
FENCE ERECTOR W ArL 44.950 47-200 2.0
GT,AZTER BLD 39. s00 41.000 1.5
HTlFRosr rNsIrr,AToR BLD 45.sso 48.o5o 1-5
rRoN woRKER E AIL 40."750 42.750 2.0
rRoN woRKER W Ar,L 44.950 47.200 2.0
T,ABORER ArL 37.000 37.750 r.5
LATHER ArL 42-s20 44.520 1.5
MACHINIST BLD 43.550 45.050 1-5
MARBLE FINISHERS ALL 29.700 O.OOO ]-.5
T4ARBLE MASON BLD 39.880 43.870 1.5
MATERIAL TESTER I AII, 27.OOO O.OOO 1.5
MATERIAIS TESTER II AIL 32.OOO O.OOO 1.5
MILLWRTGHT ArL 42.s20 44.520 1.5
OPERAT]NG ENGINEER BLD 145.100 5O.1OO 2.0
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 2 44.800 5O.1OO 2.0
OPERATING ENGINEER BI,D 3 42.250 5O.1OO 2.0
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 4 4O.5OO 5O.1OO 2. O

OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 5 49.850 5O.1OO 2.0
OPERATING ENGINEER BLD 6 47.100 5O.1OO 2. O

OPERATING ENGINEER BLD ? 49.100 5O.1OO 2.0
OPERATING ENGINEER EWY 144.300 48.300 1.5
OPERATING ENGINEER WT]Y 2 43.750 48.300 1.5
OPERATING ENG]NEER HWY 3 41.700 48.300 ]..5
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 4 40.3OO 48.300 1.5
OPERATING ENGINEER TIWY 5 39.100 48.300 1.5
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 6 4?.300 48.300 1.5
OPERATING ENGINEER HWY 7 45.300 48.300 1.5
ORNAMNTL IRON WORKER E ArL 42.gOO 45.400 2.0
ORNAMNTL IRON WORKXR W AII, 44.950 41 .2OO 2.0
PAINTER ALL 40.880 42.880 1.5
PAINTER SIGNS BLD 33.920 38.090 1.5
PTLEDRTVER ALL 42.520 44.520 1.5
PIPEFITTER BLD 41.200 43.200 1.5PLASTERER BLD 40-080 42.480 1.5
PLUMBER BLD 4r.2OO 43.200 r.5ROOFER BLD 38.350 41.350 1.5
SHEEI'IiIETAI WORKER BLD 42.510 44.510 1.5

L-5 2.0 L2.1A
r.5 2.0 L0.A2
2.0 2.O 6.970
1.5 2-0 9.sso
7.5 2.0 13.29
1.5 2.0 8-950
1.s 2.0 9.700
L.5 2.0 9 .250
1.5 2.0 5.000
1.5 2-0 5.000
1.5 2-0 5.000
1.5 2.0 5.000
1-5 2.0 9.250
2.0 2.0 11.88
1.5 2 .0 12 .85
2.0 2.0 8 - 890
2.0 2.0 ).L-99
1.5 2.0 10.82
2.0 2.O t3.20
2.0 2.0 A.A90
1.5 2.0 13.38
t.5 2.O L3.29
1.5 2.0 6-130
1.5 2-0 9.550
1.s 2.0 9.550
1-5 2.0 13.38
1.s 2.0 13.38
L.5 2.0 L3 .29
2.0 2.0 t6 -60
2-0 2.0 16.50
2.0 2.0 16 -60
2.0 2.0 t6.60
2 -O 2.0 L6 .60
2.0 2.0 L6.60
2.0 2.0 1,6 -60
1.5 2.0 16.60
1- 5 2.0 15.50
1.5 2.0 16.50
1.5 2.0 15.60
1.5 2.0 16.50
1.5 2.0 15.50
1.5 2-0 15.60
2.0 2.0 t3 .tL
2.0 2.0 I.A90
1.5 1-5 9.650
1-5 1.5 2.600
1.5 2-0 13.29
1.5 2.0 9.750
1.5 2-0 9-550
1. s 2.0 9.750
1.5 2.0 8.280
1.5 2.0 10.04

9.020 0.000 0.500
10.55 0.000 0.720
14.56 0.000 0.350
12 .00 0.000 0.970
12 .7s 0.000 0 - 630
15.3s 0.000 0.380
6.930 0.000 0.610
14.45 0 .400 0.510
11 .35 0 .000 0.270
8.780 0.000 0.210
13-58 0.000 0.330
9.090 0.000 0.220
!6 .2',7 4. 3 80 0 . 580
12.71 3.930 0.500
10.57 0.000 0.300
17.59 0.000 0.400
14 .30 0.000 0.840
11.86 0.000 0.720
19. 09 0.000 0.350
17.59 0.000 0.400
9.520 0.000 0.500
12 .75 0 - 000 0.530
8.950 1. 850 0. 000
11.75 0.000 0.620
11. 75 0.000 0.730
9 - 520 0.000 0.500
9.520 0.000 0.500
12 .75 0.000 0.530
11- 05 1. 900 1.250
11.05 1.900 1.250
11 .05 1.900 1.250
L1.05 1.900 1.250
11. 05 1. 900 1.250
1r.05 1.900 1.250
11.05 1- 900 1.2s0
11- 05 1. 900 1.250
11.0s 1.900 1.250
11.05 1- 900 1- 250
11.05 1.900 l-.250
11.05 1.900 1.250
11 .05 1.900 1.2sO
11- 05 1.900 1.250
15.40 0.000 0.500
17.59 0.000 0.400
8.200 0.000 1.250
2.710 0.000 o. ooo
12.75 0.000 0.630
17.09 0.000 1.710
12.30 0. 000 0.990
17.09 0.000 1.710
8.770 0.000 0.430
12.01 0.000 o-780

http://www.state.il.us/agency/idoypWRates/ I 3-06Jun/DU pAGEg.htm
6/4t2013



Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2013 Page 2 of 7

SPRINKLER FITTER
STEEL ERECTOR
STEEL ERECTOR
STONE MASON
TERRAZZO FINISHER
TERRAZZO MASON
TTLE MASON
TRAFFIC SAFETY !{RKR
TRUCK DRIVER
TRUCK DRIVER
TRUCK DRIVER
TRUCK DRIVER
TUCKPOINTER

BLD 49.200 51.200 1.5
E ALL 40.750 42.750 2.0
w AJ,L 44.950 4'7.200 2-O

BLD 40.6aO 44. 750 1.5
BLD 3s. s10 0.000 1- s
BLD 39.310 42.370 1.5
BLD 4l-.430 45-430 2.0
HWY 24.250 29.A50 t.5
AI,L 1 32 . s50 33.100 1.5
ALL 2 32.700 33.100 1.5
AJ,L 3 32.900 33.100 1.5
ArL 4 33.100 33 .100 1.5
BLD 40.950 41.950 1- 5

1.5 2.0 10 .25 8-350
2-O 2.0 13 .20 19.09
2.0 2.O 8.890 17.69
1. s 2 .0 9.550 12 .00
1. s 2 .0 9.100 9.320
1..5 2.0 9. ?00 1.0.66
1.5 2.0 9.700 8.540
1.5 2.0 4.596 4.L7s
1.s 2.0 6.500 4-350
r-.5 2.0 5.500 4.350
r.s 2.0 5.500 4.3s0
1.5 2.0 5.500 4.350
1.s 2-0 8.180 10-82

0.000 0.450
0.000 0.3s0
0-000 0.400
0.000 0.970
0.000 0-400
0.000 0.5s0
0.000 0.710
0.000 0.000
0.000 0.150
0.000 0.150
0.000 0.150
0.000 0.1s0
0.000 0.940

Legend:
RG (Region)
TYP (Trade Type - A1l,Highiray, Building, Sloaring, Oit & Chip,Rivels)
C (C1asa)
Baae lBaae llage RaEe)
FRMAN (Aorehan Rate)
U-F>8 (OA requiled tor any hour greater than 8 rorked each day, tion lhrough Fri.
OSA (OverEime (OT) is reguired fo! every hour roiked on Satur:day)
oSH (overtime is required for every hour eorked on sunday and golidays)
E/W (Health & Welfare Insurance)
Pensn (Penslod)
Vac (Vacation)
Trng (Training)

Explanations

DUPAGE COI]MTY

IRON WORKERS AND FENCE ERECTOR (WEST) - West of Route 53.

The following list is considered as those days for which holiday rates
of wages for work performed apply: New years Day, Memorial Day,
Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day and
veEerans Day j,n some classif icats ions /counEi.es . Generally, any of
these holidays which fal1 on a SrDday i.s celebrated on t.he following
Monday. This then makes work performed on thaE Monday payable at the
appropriate overtime rate for holiday pay. Cornmon practice in a given
Iocal may a1t.er certain days of celebration. If in dou.bt, please
check with IDOL.

EXPI,ANATION OF CI,ASSES

ASBESTOS - GENERAL - removal of asbestos material/mol,d and hazardous
maEerials from any place in a building, including mechanical sysEems
where those mechanical systems are to be removed. This includes the
removal of asbestos materials/mo1d and hazardous materj-als from
ductwork or pipes in a building when the building is to be demolished
at the Eime or at some close future date.

ASBESTOS - MECHANICAI - removal of asbestos material from nechanical
syst.ems, such as pipes, duct.s, and boifers, where ihe mechanical
systems are to remain.

TRAFFIC SAFETY - work associated with barricades, horses and drums
used Eo reduce lane usage on highway work, Ehe installation and

http://www.state.il.us/agency/idol/PWRates/I 3-06Jun/DU PAGEg.htm 6/4/2013



Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2013

removal of Eemporary lane markings, and the installaEion and removal
of temporary road signs.

CERAMIC TILE FINISHER

The grout.ing, cleaning, and polishing of all classes of t.iIe, whether
for interior or exEerj-or purposes, all burned, glazed or unglazed
product.s; all composition materials, granite tiIes, warning decectable
ti1es, cement ti1es, epoxy composite materials, pavers, gIass,
mosaics, fiberglass, and all substitute materials, for tile made in
tile-Iike unitss; all mixEures in til.e fike form of cement, metals, and
other maEerials that are for and inEended for use as a finished floor
surface, sEair treads, promenade roofs, walks, walls, ceilings,
swimming pooIs, and all other places where tile is to form a finished
inLerior or exEerior. The nj.xing of all setting mortars including but
not limited Eo Ehin-seE morEars, epoxies, wall- mud, and any other
sand and cements mixtures or adhesj.ves when used in the preparaEion,
insEallation, repair, or maint.enance of tile and,/or si.milar naEerj,als.
The handling and unloading of all sand, cemeDt, 1ime, tife,
fixtures, equipment, adhesives, or any other naterials Eo be used in
the preparation, installation, repair, or maintenance of Eile and,/or
similar materials. Ceramj.c Tile Finishers sha1I fill alL joj-nts and
voids regardless of meEhod on all tife work, particularly and
especially after installation of sai.d tile work. Applicat.ion of any
and aI1 prot.ective coveri.ngs t.o all Eypes of Eile inst.aLlations
including, but not be limited to, all soap compounds, paper products,
tapes, and all polyethylene coverings, pl.ywood, masonite, cardboard,
and any new tl4)e of producEs tshat may be used to protect tiLe
installations, Blastrac equipnent, and all floor scarifying equipment
used in preparing floors to receive tile. The clean up and removal of
all L'aste and material,s. A11 demoli.tion of existj-ng tsi1e floors and
walls to be re - ti1ed.

COMI{T]NICATIONS TECHNI CIAN

Low voltage installation, mainEenance and removal of t.elecommunicaE ion
faci.lities (voice, sound, data and video) ircluding telephone and
data insj.de vrire, interconnect, terminal equipment, central offices,
PABX, fiber opt.i.c cable and equipmenE, micro waves, V-SAT, bypass,
CATV, WAN (wide area neEworks), LAN (1oca1 area networks), and ISDN(integrated sysEem digital neEwork), pu11in9 of wire in raceways, but
not the installation of raceways.

MARBLE FINISHER

Loading and unloading trucks, di.stributiou of all materiats (aI1
stone, sand, etc.), stocking of floors with material, performing aI1
rigging for heavy work, the handling of all material that may be
needed for the installation of such materials, building of
scaffolding, polishing if needed, patsching, waxing of material if
damaged, pointing up, caulki-ng, grouting and cleaning of narble,
holdiug water on diamond or carborundun blade or saw for setters
cutEing, use of tub sah' or any ot.her saw needed for preparation of
material, drilling of holes for wires that anchor material set by
setters, mixing up of molding plaster for installation of naterj-al,
mixing up Ehin set for the inst.allation of material, mixing up of sand
Eo cement for the installation of material and such other work as may
be required in helping a Marble Setter in the handling of all
nateriaf in the erection or insEallation of inEerior marble, s1ate,

http:/iwww.state.il.us/agency/idol/PWRates/l 3-06JudDU pAGEg.htm

Page 3 of 7

6/412013



Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2013

travertine, arE marble, serpentine, alberene stone, blue stone,
granite and other stones (meaning as Eo stone ally foreign or domesEi,c
materials as are specified and used in building interiors and
exteriors and customari-Iy known as sEone in the trade) , carrara,
sanionyx, vitroliEe and similar opaque glass and the laying of all
marble tiIe, terrazzo tile, slate tile and precast ti1e, steps, risers
treads, base, or any other materials EhaE may be used as substitutes
for any of the aforementioned maEerials and which are used on j.nterior
and exterior whi,ch are installed in a similar manner.

MATERIAI TESTER I: Hand coring and dri.Iling for testi.ng of mat.erials;
field inspection of uncured concrece and asphafE.

MATERIAL TESTER II: Field i.nspection of welds, structural stee1,
fireproofing, nasonry, soi1, facade, reinforcing stee1, formwork,
cured concreEe, and concrete and asphafE bat.ch plants; adjusting
proportions of bj.tuminous mixtures.

OPERATING ENGINEER - BUILD]NG

Class 1, AsphalE PlanE; Asphalt Spreader; Autograde; Backhoes with
Caisson AttachmenE; Batch Plant; BenoEo (requires Two Engineers) ;
Boiler and Throttle Valve; Caisson Rigs; Central Redi-Mix plant;
Combj.nation Back Hoe Front End-loader Machine; Compressor and ThrotEIe
Valve; Concrete Breaker (Truck Mounted); Concrete Conveyor; Concret.e
Conveyor (Truck Mounted); Concret.e Paver Over 2'tE c1,). ft; Concrete
Paver 27E cu. fC, and Under: Concrete placer; ConcreEe placing Boom;
Concrete Pump (Truck Mounted); Concrete Tower; Cranes, AII; Cranes,
Hammerhead; Cranes, (cCI and sirnilar Dt)e) ; CreEer Crane; Spi.der
Crane; Crusher, Stone, et.c.; Derricks, A11; Derricks, Traveling;
Formless Curb and cutter Machine; crader, Elevati.ng; Grouting
Machines; Heavy DuEy Self-Propelled Transporter or prime Mover;
HighLift Shovels or Front Endloader 2-t/4 yd. and over; Hoistss,
Elevators, outside tl4)e rack and pinion and similar machines; Hoists,
One, Two and Three Drum; Hoists, Two Tugger One Floor; Hydraulic
Backhoes; Hydraulic Boom Trucks; Hydro Vac (and similar equipment) i
Locomotives, A1l; Motor patrol; Lubrication Technician; Maniputators;
Pile Drivers and Skid Rig; post Hole Digger; pre-stress Machine; pump
Cretes Dual Rarn; Pump Cretes: Squeeze Cretes-Screw Type pumps; Gypsum
Bulker and Pump; Raised and Blind Hole Dri11; Roto MiIl crinder;
Scoops - Tractor Dravrn; Sfip-Form paver; St.raddle Buggies; Operationof Tie Back Machine; Tournapull; Tractor with Boom and Side Boom;Trenching Machines .

Class 2. Boilers; Broom, A11 power propeLled; BulJ-dozers; Concret.eMixer ( Two Bag and Over) ; Conveyor, portable; Forklift Trucks;HiqhlifE Shovels or Front Endloaders urder 2-1/4 yd.; Hoists,
AuEomaEic; lloists, Inside Elevators; Hoists, Sewer Dragging Machine;Hoists, Tugger Single Drum; Laser Screed; Rock Dril-l ( i!:-t I propef lea) ;Rock Dri1l (Truck Mounted); Ro11ers, A11; Steam ceneratorsi trictors,A11; Tractor Drawn Vibratory Roller; Winch Trucks wj,th i,A,, Frame.

Class 3. Air Compressor;- Combination Sma11 Equi.pnent OperaEor;Generators; Heaters, Mechanical; Hoists, tnsi-de Elevat-ors {iemoae:-ingor renovation work); Hydraulic power Units (pi1e Driving, E*t;;;af;;:and.Drilting); pumps, over 3,, (1 to 3 not to exceed a total of 3OOft-); Low Boys; pumps, WelL poiuts; wef aing 
-D,tacirnes 

(2 Ehrough 5);Winches, 4 Smalf ElecEric Drill Winches.

Page 4 of 7

http://www.state.ir.us/agency/idol/pwRates/ 
l 3-06Jun iDU pAGEg.htm

6/4t2013



Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2013

and/or otsher Skid Steer Loaders; Oj-1ers; and BrickClass 4. Bobcats
Forklift.

Page 5 of7

Class 5. Assistant Craft Foreman.

Class 6. cradalf.

Class 7. Mechanics; We1ders.

OPERATING ENGINEERS - HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION

Class 1. Asphalt PIanE; Asphalt Heater and planer Combinat.ion; Asphalt
Heater Scarfi.re; Asphalt Spreader; Autograder/GOMACO or ot.her similar
type machines: AIlc Paver; Backhoes with Caisson Attachment; Ballast
Reg"ulator; Belt Loader; Caisson Rigs; Car Dumper; Central Redi-Mix
PlanE; Combj.nation Backhoe Frort Endloader Machine, (1 cu. yd. Backhoe
Bucket or over or with attachments); Concrete Breaker (Truck
Mount.ed) ; Concrete Conveyor; Concrete Paver over 27E. c!. ft.; Concrete
Placer; Concrete Tube Float; Cranes, alL attachments; Cranes, Tower
Cranes of all types: Creter Crane: Spider Crane; Crusher, Stone, etc-;
Derricks, Al1; Derrick Boats; Derricks, Traveling; Dredges;
Elevators, Outside tx)e Rack & Pinion and Similar Machines; Formless
Curb and cutter Machine; crader, Elevating; crader, Motor crader,
Motor Patrol, AuEo Patrol, Form crader, Pu1l crader, Subgrader; cuard
Rail Post Driver Truck Mounted; Hoists, One, Two and Three Drum; Heat1r
Duty Self-Propefled Transporter or Prime Mover; Hydraulic Backhoes;
Backhoes with shear attachment.s up Eo 40,of boom reach; Lubrication
Technician; Manipulators; Mucking Machine; pile Drivers and Skid Rig;
Pre-Stress Machine; Pump CreEes Dual Ran; Rock Dri11 - Crawler or Skid
Rig; Rock Drill - Truck Mounted, Rock/Track Tanper; Roto MiII
Grinder; Slip-Form Paver; snow Melters; Soil Test Dri11 Rig (Truck
Mounted) ; Straddle Buggies; Hydraulic Telescoping Form (T\rnnel) ;
Operation of Tieback Machine; Tractor Drawn Belt Loader; Tractor
Drawn Belt Loader (with attached pusher - tvro engineers) ; Tractor with
Boom; Tractaire wiEh AEtachments; Traffic Barrier Transfer Machine;
Trenching; Truck Mounted Concrete pump with Boom; Raised or B1ind Hole
Dril1s (Tunnel shaft); underground Boring and/or Mining Machines 5
ft. in diameEer and over tunrlel, etc; Underground Boring and/or Mini.ng
Machines under 5 ft. in diameEer; wheel Excavator; Widener (APSCO) .

Class 2. Batch Plant; Bituminous Mixer; Boi,ler arrd Throttle Vatve;
Bulldozers; Car Loader Trai.ling Conveyors; combinaEion Backhoe Front
Endloader Machine (Less than 1 cu. yd. Backhoe Bucket or over or with
attachment.s); Compressor and Throt.tle valve; Conpressor, Common
Receiver (3); Concrete Breaker or Hydro Hammer; Colcrete crinding
Machine; Concrete Mixer or paver 7S Series to and including 27 cu.
ft..; Concrete Spreader; Concrete Curing Machine, Burlap Machine,
Belting Machine and Sealing Machine; Concrete Wheel- Saw; Conveyor Muck
Cars (Haglund or Similar fype); Drills, A1J.; Finishing Machine -
Concrete; Highlift ShoveLs or Front Endloader; Hoist - Sewer Dragging
Machine; Hydraulic Boom Trucks (A11 At.tachments); Hydro-Blaster; iydio
Excavating (excluding hose work) ; Laser screed; AL1 Locomotives,
Dinky; Off-Road Hauling Units (iucludirg artj.culating) Non
Self-Loadiug Ejection Dump; pump Cretes: Squeeze Cretes - Screw Type
Pumps, Gypsum Bulker and punp; Ro1ler, Asphalt; Rotary Snow plows;
Rototiller, Seaman, etc., self-propelled; Self-propelled Compacbor;
Spreader - Chip - Stone, etc.; Scraper - Sin91e/T\.rin Engine/hrsh andPuIf; Scraper - Prime Mover in Tandem (Regardless of Size); Tractors

http://www.state.il.us/agency/idol/PWRates/l 3-06Jun/DU pAGEg.htm 614t2013



Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2013

pulling aEtachnents, Sheeps Foot, Disc, Compact.or, etc.; Tug Boats.

Class 3. Boilers; Brooms, A1I power propelled; Cement Supply Tender;
Compressor, Common Receiver 12) i concret.e Mixer (Tr1,o Bag and Over);
Conveyor, PorEable; Farm-fype Tractors Used for Mowing, Seeding, etc.,
Forklift Trucks; crouting Machine; Hoists, Autonatic; Hoists, A11
Elevat.ors; Hoists, Tugger Sj.ngle Drum; Jeep Dj-ggers; Low Boysr pipe
Jacking Machj-nes; Post-Ho1e Di.gger; power Saw, Concrete power Driven;
Pug Mi1ls; Rollers, other Ehan AsphalE; Seed and Straw Bfower; Steam
Generators; Stump Machine; Winch Trucks with "A" Frame; Work Boats;
Tamper - Form - Motor Driven.

Class 4. Air Compressor; Combination - Smal1 Equipment Operator;
Directional Boring Machine; cenerators; Heaters, Mechanical; Hydraulic
Power Unit (Pile Driving, Ext.racting, or Drilling) ; Light plants, A11
(1 through 5); Pumps, over 3,' (1 to 3 not. Eo exceed a total of 300
ft.); Pumps, welL Poj-nts; vacuum Trucks (excludiag hose work); welding
Machines (2 through 5); llinches, 4 Sma11 El-ectric Dril1 winches.

Class 5. Skidsteer Loader (a11); Brick Forklifts; Oilers.

Class 6. Field Mechanics and Fi.eld welders

C1ass 7. Do\delL Machine with Air Compressor; Gradall and machines of
like nature.

TRUCK DRIVER . BUILDING, HEAVY AND HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION

Class 1, Two or three Axle Trucks. A-frane Truck when used for
transportation purposes; Air Compressors and welding Machines,
including Ehose puIIed by cars, pick-up Erucks and Eractorsi
Anbulances; Batch Gate Lockers; Batch Hopperman; Car and Truck
washers; Carry-aLls; Fork Lifts and Hoisters; Helpers; Mechanj-cs
Helpers and creasers; OiI DistribuEors 2-rnan operationi pavement
Breakers; Pole Trailer, up Eo 40 feet; power Mower TracEors;
SeIf-propelled Chip Spreader; Skipmar; Slurry Trucks, 2-man
operacion; S1urry Truck Conveyor Operation, 2 or 3 man; TeamsEers;
Unekilled Dumpman; and Truck Drivers hauling warning lights,
barricades, and portable Eoilets on Ehe job site.

Class 2. Four axle trucks; Dunp Crets and Adgetors under 7 yards;
Dumpsters, Track Trucks, EucLids, Hug Bottom Dump Turnapulls or
Turnatrailers when pulling other than seff-loading equipment or
sj-mi1ar equipment under 16 cubic yards; Mixer Trucks under 7 yeardsi
Ready-mix Plant Hopper Operator, and Winch Trucks, 2 Ax1es.

Class 3. Five axle Erucks; Dump CreEs and Adget.ors 7 yards and over;
Dumpst.ers, Track Trucks, Euclids, Hug Bottom Dump Turnatrailers or
turnapulLs when pufling other than self-loading equipnent or similar
equipnent over 16 cubic yards; ExpLosives and/or Fission Material
Trucks; Mixer Trucks 7 yards or over; Mobile Cranes whiLe in transit;
Oi1 Dist.ributors, 1-man operation; pole Trailer, over 4O feeti pole
and Expandable Trailers hauling material over 50 feet Long; Slurrytrucks, 1-man operation; Winch trucks, 3 axles or more;
Mechanic--Truck Welder and Truck painter.

Class 4, Six axle trucks; Dual-purpose vehi.cles, such as mountedcrane trucks with hoist and accessorj-es; Foreman; Master Mechanic;

Page 6 of 7

http://www.state.il.us/agency/idol/PWRates/l 3-06Jun/DU pAGEg.htm
6/4t2013



Du Page County Prevailing Wage for June 2013

Self-loading equipment. Like P.B, and trucks with scoops on the front.

TERRAZZO FTNISHER

The handling of sand, cement, marble chj.ps, and all ot.her materials
thaE may be used by Ehe Mosaic Terrazzo Mechanic, and the mixing,
grindj.ng, grouting, cleaning and sealing of all Marble, Mosaic, and
Terrazzo work, floors, base, stairs, and wainscoting by hand or
machine, and in addition, assist.ing and aiding Marble, Masonic, and
Terrazzo Mechanics .

Other Classifications of work:

For definit.ions of classi fi.cations not. ot.herwise set out, the
Department gerlera],1y has on file such definitions which are available.
If a task bo be performed is not subject to one of the
cLassifications of pay set ouE, Ehe Department. will upon being
contacted state v,rhich neighboring county has such a classification and
provide such rate, such raEe being deemed to exist by reference in
tshis document. If no neighboring county rate applies to the Eask,
Ehe Department shal1 undertake a special determinatj.on, such special
deEerrnination being then deemed Eo have exisEed under thi.s
determination. If a projecE requires Ehese, or any classification not
1istsed, please contact IDOL at 217-782-L7L0 for wage rates or
clari f icat.ions .

I,ANDSCAPING

LaEdscaplng work falls under the existing classifications for laborer,
operaEing engineer and Eruck driver. The work performed by landscape
plantsnan and landscape laborer j-s covered by the existing
classificatj,on of laborer. The work performed by landscape operat.ors
(regardless of equi.pment used or its size) is covered by Ehe
cl,ass if ications of operating engineer. The work perfomed by
landscape truck drivers (regardless of size of truck driven) is
covered by the classifications of truck driver.

Page 7 of 7

http://www.state.il.us/agency/idol/PWRates/l 3-06Jun/DU pAGEg.htm 614t2013



VILLAGE, OFM
A VERY SPECIAL PLACE

Straub
Mavor

J. Thomas
Village Clerk

Steven S. Stricker
Administrator

7660 Cou-nry Line Rd. . Burr Ridge, lL 60527
(630) 654-8181 'Fax (630) 654-8269 . www.burr-ridge.gov

June 4, 2013

Mayor Straub and Board of Trustees
7660 County Line Road
Burr fudge, Illinois 60527

Re: 7-08-20132 200 Burr Ridge Parkway @ao Sushi & Thai); Speciat Use

Dear Mayor and Board of Trustees:

The Plan Commission u?nsmits for your consideration its recommendation to
approve a request by Dao Sushi & Thai Restaurant for special use approval as per
Section VIII.B.2.x of the Burr fudge Zoning Ordinance to allow for the expansion
and modification of an outdoor dining area for an existing restaurant. The
property is located at 200 Bun fudge Parkway in County Line Square.

After due notice, as required by law, the Plan Commission held a public hearing on
June 3, 2013. In 2011 the petitioner expanded the restaurant to incorporate an
additional tenant space in the shopping center. This petition seeks to extend the
outdoor dining area in front of this additional storefront space while also removing
some of the outdoor dining area from the opposite end of the expanded storefront.
The Plan Commission concluded that the changes were minor and consistent with
the original approval.

After due consideration, the Plan Commission concluded that the proposed special
use complies with the standards of the Zoning Ordinance. Accordingly, by a vote
of 5 to 0, the Plan Commission recommends approval of a special use requested
by Z-08-2013 subject to the following conditions:

A. Tables, chairs and umbrellas shall be removed during the winter season
when the ouldoor dining area is not in use.

B. The concrete floor of the outdoor seating area shall be treated and cleaned
before and after each season to ensure the removal of all food stains and
retum it to a state consistent with other concrete sidewalks within County
Line Square.

C. The outdoor dining area shall be restricted by the same hours of operation
as the restaurant.



D. All facilities and the configuration ofthe outdoor dining area shall comply
with the submitted plans except that the design of the metal railing shall
be subject to the review and approval of the Community Development
Director.

E. Music and all other amplified sound should be kept to a moderate level so
it is not audible from any property adjacent to County Line Square.

F. There shall be no text or logos on the umbrellas.

Sincerely,

Greg Tranpek, Chairman
Village of Bun Ridge
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals

GT:JDP:sr



lrl
t

(-)
Z

=E.
o_

(_)
----tm
l
o_

94.,/le(. I

z\

GE
N,,
%e$,
GA$,
GS
N,d

ooutr/>'(.\
(1ngtrm

!2u.
@

:
@"8

R

@
@



O.E
fi

a -:
;N-

O

.\
O-a
CD

4

4'- 0l

@-!!

-1 z

- \))
c,,'r))J

-r-l
rrl
Z
O

U

CN

I

-I

-

-l-.F
z

l

I



7660 Counry Line Rd. . Burr Ridge, lL 60527
(630) 654-8181 'Fax (630) 654-8269 ' www.bur-ridge.gov

June 4, 2013

Mayor Straub and Board of Trustees
7660 County Line Road
Bun tudge, Illinois 60527

Re: 2.09-2013:60 Shore Drive (Mucha / Brand Max); Special Use

Dear Mayor and Board of Trustees:

The Plan Commission transmits for your consideration its recommendation to
approve a request by Anita K. Mucha for special use as per Section X.F.2.a of the
Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance for an Automobile Sales and Service business in a GI
General Industrial District. The property is located at 60 Shore Drive.

After due notice, as required by law, the Plan Commission held a public hearing on
June 3, 2013. The subject property is improved with a 60,000 square ioot
warehouse building. There is already an auto sales business in th; building
(Corvette Mike's). The subject business would be similar except that they specializi
in the sales ofpre-owned luxury automobiles. They would occupy 7,400 square feet
of the building.

The Commission's primary concem is previous violations for outside storage.
corvette Mike's is prohibited from displalng or storing vehicles outside and other
car dealers in the Village are prohibited from displaying or storing cars outside.

After due consideration, the Plan Commission concluded that the proposed special
use complies with the standards of the Zoning Ordinance. Accordingly, by a vote
of 5 to 0, the Plan Commission recommends approval of a special use requested
by Z-09-2013 subject to the following conditions:

A. The special use permit shall be limited to the sales of pre-owned luxury
automobiles with minor detailing and repairs.

B. The special use shall be limited to the 7,400 square feet of floor area as
designated on the site plan.

C. The special use permit shall be limited to Brand Max Motors and shall
expire at such time that Brand Max Motors no longer occupies the space at

VILLACE, OF

A VE,RY SPECIAL PLACE

Sraub
Mayor

J. Thomas
Village Clerk

Steven S. Stricker
Administrator



60 Shore Drive or at which time there is an assignment or termination of
the lease for the space at 60 Shore Drive.

D. Outside display and./or storage of any goods, materials, and automobiles
shall be prohibited.

Sincerely,

Greg Trzupek, Chairman
Village of Bun Ridge
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals

GT:JDP:sr



hi
F,

i-i

r
o
s
o
.{J

o
e
,4
a*

,i,&n"

!'?,&,,^-

10>
1 :.$-,4- 

aft

' \).
-----tiq^*_ arr"o-b,

ss,.

- -S 
^:1,- -'qk,

. 's 
-.'1,

9;o,,o- t-,f"gro,

qry,,

J4rt

c:sld
IiuJlo1,{.IF
i6
i \-l-
I
1

/'

EJo-i

b1

8r
I

i
I

1

I

i

i

1

I



VILLACE, OFM
A VE,RY SPECIAL PLACE

7660 Counry Line Rd. ' Burr Ridge, IL 60527
(630) 654-8181 'Fax (630) 654-8269 ' www.burr-ridge.gov

June 4, 2013

trG{i{;
Steven S. Stricker

Admioistrator

Mayor Straub and Board of Trustees

7660 County Line Road
Burr Ridge, Illinois 60527

Re: Ll0-20132 15W308 North Frontage Road (Bryjak/Martin); Special Use

Dear Mayor and Board of Trustees:

The Plan Commission transmits for your consideration its recommendation to
approve a request by Richard Bryjak for special use approval as per Section
VIII.C.2 of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance for the continued use of the
property for an automobile repair and service business with limited outside
storage of automobiles. The property is located at 15W308 North Frontage Road.

After due notice. as requhed by law, the Plan Commission held a public hearing on
June 3, 2013. In 2011 the petitioner was $anted a temporary special use for
automobile service with limited outside storage of vehicles for sale. The petitioner's
business powder coats and installs automobile parts (for example, wheels). The
previous special use was temporary for two reasons. There were prior property
maintenance violations and the two year lime period would allow the Village to
determine if the property was going to be properly maintained. Also, the Plan
Commission indicated that they would like to see the property rezoned to the Tl
District but accepted this use as interim use. It was noted at the 2013 hearing that
there had been no additional violations since 201 l.

After due consideration, the Plan Commission concluded that the proposed special
use complies with the standards of the Zoning Ordinance. Accordingly, by a vote
of 5 to 0, the Plan Commission recommends approval ofa speeial use requested
by Z-10-2013 subject to the following conditions:

A. The special use shall be restricted to the current tenant and owner and
shall be limited to the powder coating of automobile parts and related
work.

B. The special use may include outside storage of operable vehicles located
immediately behind the building at 15W308 North Frontage Road and



with said storage not exceeding 5 vehicles. No wrecked, unlicensed, or
inoperable vehicles shall be stored on the property at any time.

C. The special use shall be for a limited period of time not to exceed 2 years.

Sincerely,

Greg Trzupek, Chairman
Village of Burr Ridge
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals

GT:JDP:sr



MTORRI=
ENG NE E R ING, INC.

PLAT OF SUBVEY

7J7-r{ .9rREET

I
I

NiNI

s
\
^h

N

N

' {."/'

r:\_

ire
eEE
e!!

\
?rqir!v-c

qs

7',"|

-'t )
-" ,"'

-- t.rt I



June 4,2013

Mayor Straub and Board of Trustees
7660 County Line Road
Bun Ridge, Illinois 60527

Re: V-03-2013: 86ll Cret Court (Schulz); Variation

Dear Mayor and Board ofTrustees:

The Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) hansmits for your consideration its rccommendation to
approve a request by Mr. David Schulz on behalf the property owner for a variation fiom
Section [V.J.l of the Burr Ridge Zoning Ordinance to permit a fence that exceeds the
maximum permitted height of 5 feet.

After due notice, as required by law, the Zoning Board of Appeals held a public hearing on
June3,2013. The homeowner seeks to construct a swimming pool and patio improvements
for an existing home. A requirement ofthe Village's Building Ordinance is that the pool be
enclosed with a fence. In this particular case. the petitioner is challenged by a significant
change in grade and the need to construct retaining walls around the pool and patio area. As
a result, the fence that is proposed for the pool has to cross the retaining walls at a 90 degee
angle which results in the fence exceeding the maximum height permitted by the Zoning
Ordinance (4 foot fence plus 3.5 foot retaining wall).

After due consideration, the Zoning Board of Appea.ls concluded that the proposed variation
complies with the standards of the Zoning Ordinance. Accordingly, by a vote of 5 to 0, the
Zoning Board of Appeals recommends approval of V-03-2013 subject to compliance
with the plans as submitted.

Sincerely,

Greg Trarpek, Chairman
Village of Bun Ridge
Plan Commission/Zoning Board of Appeals

GT:JDP:sr

VILLACtr ON Mickey Straub
Mavor

Karen J, Thomas
Village Clerk

Steven S. Stricker
Administrator

A VE,RY SPE,CIAL PLACE,
7660 Counq, Line Rd. ' Burr tudge, lL 60527

(630) 654-8181 'Fax (630) 654-8269 ' www.burr-ridge.gov



S

!A
a-
'=

16';t \.
fiE ''
f,{6,

CLARI FICATION DIAGRAMS

CASTELBUONO RESIDENCE
REAR YAAO RENOVATION

361I CREST COURI



6T\

ir*

li

t+
elE
RIF

ilp
ulE

6tR
*13

oli
llE

f

CASTELBUONO RESIDENCE
REAR YARO RENOVATION

3611 CREST COURT
BURR RIDGE [ 60527

CLARI FICATION DIAGRAMS



fi.r.,MPSON,,,,, 3406 Entergise Avenue
Valpiraico, lN 46383

Phone: (800) 255-1521
Fax: (888) 531-2444

www.mesimpson.com

May 13. 2013 trE
Mr. Jim Lukas
Water & Sewer Superintendent
Village of Bun Ridge
45 I Commerce Street
Bun Ridge, Illinois 60527

Dear Mr. Lukas,

M.E. Simpson Co., lnc. is pleased to present our "Proposrl for Wrter Distribution System Lcrk
Suney" for the Village of Burr fudge, Illinois.

M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. is a Technical Service Company performing services designed to aid a Utility in
improving accomlability, increasing revenues, heightening distribution system performance and optimizing
distribution system data, records and mapping programs. As a part of our services we also manufacture the
Polcono flow and pressure monitoring equipment. Our wastewiter services provide improvement to
collection systems through flow monitoring, smoke testing, and manhole inspections.

This Proposel is being submitted as follo\ys:

I Scope ofServices
I Project Scope

hoject Overview
Assumptions and Services Provided by the Utility
Equipment Used
Safety

I Quelificetions / Personnel
I References
I Proposed Project Scbedule
I Proposel Fee

We thank you for your consideration and this opportunity to acquaint you with our Water Distribution
System Leak Survey services. Ifthere are any inquiries regarding this proposal, please do not hesitate to
contact us. We look forrrard to hearing Iiom you soon.

Sincerely yours,

(""#
Regional Manager - Dyer
RL/jph

Valparaiso, IN - Phoenix, AZ - Dyer, lN-Waukegan, lL'lndianapolis, lN - Gwinneft Co., GA - Savage, MN - Chicago, lL - Baltimore, MD - San Francisco, CA



The Wrter Distribution Lerk Surv€y program is conducted using the latest state ofthe art leak
computers, the Fluid Conservation Systems' AC Digital, DigiCALL with an outsiation preamplifier-
transducer system. All ofthese correlators are manufactured by Fluid Conservation Systems of Milford,
Ohio. These Correlators haye a proven record of achievement in locating leaks on water distribution
systems under some very extreme circumstances. M.E. Simpson Co., lnc. uses FCS equipment exclusively
in its leak detection programs for watq utilities. Our experienced Project Team (M.8. Simpson Co., Inc.
uses TWO trained technicians on each leak survey team) will use these devices, along with the S30, or L-
MIC elecfonically enhanced listening device, to survey the pipeline network.

Every hydrant and accessible valve will be used as a listening point to identifo leaks. For non-PVC pipes,
services are used on an "as needed" basis to keep the distance between listening points less than five
hundred feet (500'); for PVC pipes all accessible services will be listened to. When a leak is detected
correlation will be used to verift the existence ofthe leak as well as to pin-point it. "Pinpointing" ofthe
leak, as well as locating leaks other methods fail to reveal, is also done with the FCS correlation equipment
mentioned above. These electronic instruments are microprocessor units measues the time it takes the
sound ofthe leak to travel Aom the leak to the point where the leak correlator is connected to the water
line. By connecting the leak correlator to the water line at two locations we receive data describing the
distance from the leak to each connection point thus enabling us to determine the exact leak location.

The Water Distribution Leek Survey includes M.E. Simpson Co., lnc. fumishing all labor, material,
transportation, tools, and equipment necessary to survey the water system. M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. shall be
required to provide such skilled and trained personnel and equipment necessary to complete the work
herein specified. These personnel are required to have a minimum ofthree years field experience in leak
location and pinpointing. There will be a minimum of two persons oer team workins on the survev at all
times.

PROJECT OVERVIEW

SURVEY

a For non-PVC pipes, survey will be completed by listening on all fire hydrants, all
accessible main line valves, and when necessary, sewices in the designated areas ofthe
leak survey with the chosen electronic listening device. (The location and description of
all listening points not accessible will be given to the Uriliry and once conected they will
be listened to as well.)

I For PVC pipes survey will be completed by listening on all fire hydrants and accessible
valves and services.

I No two listening poins (i.e.: hydrants, valves, services, etc.) should be more than 500'
feet apart for non-PVC pipes or 150' for PVC pipes.

I When leak noise has been detected and / or suspected, M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. will use an
electronic leak correlator to determine ifa leak is present and use the same equipment to
pinpoint the leak.

REP1ORTS

M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. shall supply a written report on all leaks with their location and
estimated water losstothe Utility. Included with the written reports will be a descriptive
map ofeach leak location. M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. shall also supply a written report on
all mechanical deficiencies discovered during the leak survey,
i.e.: broken valves, hydrants, and services.



ASSUMPTIONS AND SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE UTILITY

a T\e Utility will fumish all maps, atlases (rwo copies), and records necessary to properly
conduct the survey.

a The U/i/iql will assist as necessary in cleaning out services and valve boxes needed for
listening.

a T\e Utility will make available, on a reasonable but periodic basis, certain personnel with a
working knowledge ofthe waler system who may be helpful in aftempting to locate particularly
hard-to-find water valves for listening and for general information about the system.

EOUIPMENT USED

a FCS AC Digital, FCS DigiCALL Correlating System Leak Corelator, or Vivax-Metrotech
HL6000

I FCS S-30 or FCS L-MIC electronically enhanced listening device
. RADIO DETECTION LINE LOCATORS
a SCHONSTEDT or CHICAGO TAPE magnetic locator

SAFETY

S!l&!E is a major paft ofthis project; the Urir4, requires a safe work environmenl for its employees,
technical service providers and the general public. The technical service provider is required to provide a
safe work environment at all times during this project. The technical service provider will provide personnel
trained in Confined Space Entry & Self-Rescue, Work Plrce First Aid, CPR end TraIIic Control.
While in the field on this project, the technical service provider and its employees will follow all ofthe
necessary safety procedures to protect themselves, the UdirJ staffand general public. A minimum of
Two-Person Teams will be used at ell times for Safetv and Ouality Assurance.

Therefor€, the technical serrice provid€r will edhere to the following:
. Any water meter and/or valve locations located in a "confined space" such as pit or vauh installations

that lg!rylIt will be treated in accordance with the safety rules regarding Confined Space Entry
as is designated by the Afl !, The Depsnment of Labor znd OSHA. Project personnel will be

!!4igl (certified were applicable) in Confined Space Entry & Self-Rescue.
o Proper PPE (personal proteclion equipment) shall be wom at all times. A class III reflective safety vest

will be worn for all work. Class Il will not be accepted.
. The Project Team will follow all traflic safety rules, as is designated by the Utilily, The Department

of Labo4 OSHA and lhe Stale Departntenl of Trunsponalion. Project personnel will be trained
(certified were applicable) by an organization such as the;IMERICAN TMFFIC SAFTEY
SERVICES ASSOCIATION (ATSSA), in Traffic Control and Safety (MUTCD Standards).

. The Project Team will follow all procedures regarding Work Plece First Aid & CPR, as is designated
by the Utility, The Deparlrrunt of Labor and OSHA, Project personnel will be trained (certified
were applicable) in First Aid & CPR.

o The Project Manager and the Project Leader will be trained in accordance with OSHA Standard l910
(General Industry) and be in possession ofan OSHA l0 Hour or 30 Hour Card.



PRIMARY LINES OF BUSINESS

M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. is a Technical Senice Company performing services designed to aid a Utility in
improying accountability, increasing revenues, heightening your distribution system performance and
optimizing your distribution syslem data, records and mapping programs. As a part ofour services we also
manufacture the Polcon@ flow and pressure monitoring equipment. Our wastewater services provide
improvement to collection syslems through flow monitoring, smoke testing, and manhole inspections

LENGTH OF SERVICE

ln 1979, M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. was formed to provide "Technical Senices" lo Municipal and Private
Water Utilities. M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. was founded by Marvin E. Simpson who had spent the twenty four
yqrs prior to 1979 working within the water works industry for a few major manufacturers ofpiping,
valves, and water meters. The company began operations in Rochester, Indiana and moved the corporate
headquarters to Valparaiso, Indiana in 1988. In 1989, the lndiana Section of AWWA honored Marvin with
the "Water Wheel Award" for his outstanding service to the water profession. In 1995, Marvin was
honored as a life Member of the American Water Works Association.

M,E. SIMPSON CO. INC. EMPLOYEE OUALIFICATIONS

Michael D. Simoson. CEO, has been with the company since February 1983 after completing two years at
Purdue Univenity studying Industrial Technology. Michael developed many ofthe rechniques used today
by M.E. Simpson Co., lnc. for performing water distribution system evaluations. Michael has completed
classes and given lectures on hydraulics specifically related to the PolconE Flow Testing equipment and
performed flow testing from 1986 through 1998. He has been personally responsible for over 100 \yater
distribution evaluation programs. In addition, Michael is experienced in sewer flow monitoring using ISCO
equipment, experienced in sewer smoke testing, and manhole inspections. Michael has maintained an
active role in several local and state water works organizations. Michael has held offices on various Boards
of Directors, as well as served on various committees. At this time, Michael is Chair - "Waterfor peoptd,
committee for the lllinois Section of AWWA; Chair - MAC committee for the lndiana Section of AWWA;
and is a member of the National AWWAqlyater Loss Control Committee", ard a member of the Water
Environment Federation (WEF). As a part ofhis involvement in different organizations Michael continues
to teach Water Loss Reduction and Water Dishibution System lmprovement classes. He is a multi-section
member of the AWWA and a member of Illinois, lndiana, Michigan, Minnesota, Ohio and Wisconsin Rural
Water organizations. Michael was aw Nded the " ll er Wheel Award" by the Indiana Section for his
outstanding contributions to the water profession and the Water-for-People's ,,Kenneth J. Miller Founden
Aword" for his commitment to their efforts.

Dsn E. Hood, President, has been with the company since October 1985. Dan is a graduate of Purdue
University with a B.S. in lndustrial Technology. Dan has implemented certain computer programs which
have greatly improved the water distribution systems evaluations. Having attended classes on hydraulics
specifically related to our Polcono Flow Testing equipment, Dan has ten tears ofexperience peiforming
flow tests. Dan is experienced in sewer flow monitoring using ISCO equipment, experienced in sewer
smoke testing, and manhole inspections. Dan has extensiye experience in meter evaluation, maintenance
and installation. After completing numerous schools and lectures related to the operation and maintenance
ofwater meters he has taught these techniques to employees. Dan was instrumental in pioneering the
development ofour valve assessment programs and the early development ofour Polcon pro-Valveo
software and has trained all ofour personnel in this area. Dan has taught Water Loss Reduction and Water
Distribution System Improvement classes for the Indiana Section of AWWA and the Indiana Department
of Environmental Management. Dan has published articles in News Leaks, Indiana Section of AWWA
newsletter; Solash, Illinois Section ofAWWA newsletter, and American Backflow Prevention Association
newsletter. Dan is a multi-section member of AWWA and a member of Indiana and wisconsin Rural
water organiations, as well as the water Environment Federation (wEF). He is the past Chair (2007) for
the lndiana Section of AWWA. He is also a member of the National AWWA.Meler Standards-
Committee and the usection Msnagemezl" Committee. Dan received the Indiana Section,s .,Zater
Llheel Award' for his outstanding service to lhe water profession and the water-for-people's ,,Kennelh J,
Miller Founden Apard" for his commitment to their efforts.



John H. Van Andel. Vice President. has been with the company since May 1989. He is a graduate of
Valparaiso University with a B.A. in Ceography with an emphasis in locational evaluation and research
design. He has completed Water Operators classes and seminars on Water Filtration and Distribution;
Vulnerability Assessment Class for the Sandia Labs RAM-W method and the RAM-W "modified" for
small to medium systems (licensed to use the Sandia l,obs RAM-llt Method, and licensed to teach the RAM-
ll " nodiJied" for small to medium water systems); Operation and Maintenance of Water Meters, and Flow
Testing. John has extensive experience in the use of state ofthe art leak detection equipment and meter
evaluation and maintenance. His expert knowledge includes the use of the Polcono Flow Testing method
in flow testing; valve location, exercising and mapping programs and fire hydrant and main capacity flow
testing programs. John is experienced in sewer flow monitoring and evaluation using ISCO equipment,
experienced in sewer smoke testing, and manhole inspections and inventory. John helped develop our
Unidirectional Main Flushing Program. He is responsible for the analysis, evaluation, and CAD updating of
Water Distribution, Sanitary, and Storm Atlases using GPS localing. He has lectured to several local and
state Water Works Organizations on Water Loss Reduction and Flow Testing and served on the North
Suburban Water Works Association Board ofDirectors. John has published articles in News Leaks. Indiana
Section of AWWA newsletter; Splash, Illinois Section of AWWA newsletter. He has present papers at
national AWWA conferences. John is a multi-section member of the AWWA andamemberof Illinois and
Wisconsin Rural Water organizalions. He curently serves as Chair -Elect of the lllinois Section AWWA,
and is the current Chair of the Natiolal AW'VI A'Water Loss " Committee.

Jefftev A. Monis, Vice Presidenl, has been with the company since March 1996. He previously worked
in the plumbing/pipe fifting and construction industry for 12 years. Jeffis a graduate oflawrence County
Vocational/Technical School where he studied Industrial Electricity. Jeffhas attended numerous schools,
classes and lectures related to the operalion, maintenance and installation ofwater meters and completed
classes in plumbing. Jeffhas extensive experience in operation, maintenance and installation ofwater
meters; valye location, exercising and mapping: fire hydrant and main capacity flow testing; and use of
state ofthe art leak detection equipment. He is also experienced in the use ofall ofour Polcono Flow
Testing equipment. He has operated and supervised numerous wastewater flow monitoring, smoke testing
and mapping projects. He also has knowledge and training in the use ofISCO equipment and its
deployment. Jeffis a member of the Indiana and Ohio Sections of AWWA. As a member of the Indiana
Section of AWWA, he serves as Chair - Competition Committee and Small Systems Committee. He is a
member oflndiana and Ohio Rural Water organizations as well as the Water Environment Federation
(WEF), and serves as Chair - Associate Member Events & Exhibits Committee of Indiana Rural Water
Association. Jeff received the Indiana Section's"Wat$ Weel Award'for his outstanding service to the
water profession. Jeff is also currently the Chair for the National AWWA Meter Madness Committee.

Mallhew S. Brown, Regionsl Manaeer-Valoarabo. has been with the company since May 1990. He
previously worked in the farming industry. Matt has completed classes and attended lectures related to the
operation and maintenance ofwater meters and backflow testing. He has extensive experience in all aspects
ofevaluation and maintenance ofwater meters, valve location, and exercising and mapping programs. Man
is also experienced in the use of stale ofthe art leak detection equipment and the operation ofour Polcono
Flow Testing equipment. Matt is a member of the Indiana and Michigan Sections of AWWA as well as

the Indiana and Michigan Rural Water organizations.

Randahl Lusk. Reeional Manager-Drer, has been with the company since November 2000. He previously
worked in retail business. Randy has attended classes and lectures on the operation and maintenance of
water meters. Randy has experience in valve location, exercising and mapping, and the use of state ofthe
art leak detection equipment. He is experienced in the operation and maintenance ofwater meters, fire
hydrant, main capacity flow tesling, and the operation ofour Polcono Flow Testing equipment. Randy is
the Pasl President ofthe South Sububan Water Works Association, member ofthe lndiana and lllinois
Sections of AWWA, and member of the "Tops Ops" and "Young Professionals" Committees in Illinois.



Todd Schaefer, Resional Manaper-Waukesan, has been with the company since July of 1999 after
completing three years at Purdue University in the Krannert School of Management. He preyiously worked
in production quality control and also worked in the automotive industry. Todd has completed classes and
attended lectures on the operation and maintenance ofwater meters and backflow testing. Todd's expert
knowledge in valve location, exercising and mapping, and the use ofthe state ofthe art leak detection
equipment. He is experienced in the operation and maintenance ofwater meters, fire hydrant and main
capacity flow testing, unidirectional water main flushing, sewer smoke testing, and the operation ofour
Polcono Flow Testing equipment. He has also lectured several state and local water works organizations.
Todd is a member of the North Suburban Water Works Association Board of Directors (201 l -2013) Mid
Central Water Works Association, Kane County Water Association, West Shore Water Producers
Association, APWA-Lake Branch Chapter and the Wisconsin and Illinois Sections of AWWA, Society of
Water Professionals (WRWA), and MAC in Illinois and Wisconsin.

Scotl McElrov. Resional Manapet - Phoenix, has been with the company since August 1997. He
completed one year at Purdue University in Business Management. Scott preyiously worked in the
construction industry and retail business. He has completed classes and attended lectures on the operation
and maintenance ofwater meters. Scott is experienced in the operation and maintenance of water meters,
valve location, exercising and mapping, use ofthe state ofthe art leak detection equipment, and the
operalion ofour Polcono Flow Testing equipment. He has supervised wastewater manhole inspection,
inventory, and mapping projects. Scott currently serves on the Safety Committee for the AZ Water
Association.

Alex Hood. Operations ond Produclion Manaser, has been with the company since October of 1998. Alex
spent seven years in the United States Marine Corps Reserve and is a graduate of Purdue University with a
Bachelor ofScience in Organizational Leadership and Supervision. He has experience in valve location,
exercising and mapping, and the use ofthe state ofthe art leak detection equipment. Alex also has
experience in the operation andmaintenance ofwater meters, fire hydrant and main capacity flow testing,
and the operation ofour Polconc Flow Testing equipment. Alex has attended classes and lectures on the
operation and maintenance of water meters. He has operated and supervised wastewater flow monitoring,
manhole inspection, smoke tesling and mapping projects. He is an authorized trainer for: OSHA l0/30 hr.
for Ceneral Industry; lnstructor for American Red Cross certified First Aid and CPR with AED; Flagging
Instructor, Traffic Control Technician, and Traffic Control Supervisor for the American Traffic Safety
Services Association (ATSSA). He is certified as a Traffic Control Supervisor, Traffic Control Technician,
holds a General Industry & Construclion Industry OSHA lOhr Card, OSHA 30hr Card, and First Aid and
CPR. Alex is a member of the American Traffic and Safety Services Association (ATSSA), the American
Society of Safety EngineeB (ASSE), the National Safety Council (NSC). Alex is a member ofthe Indiana
Section AWWA and serves on the Safety Committee.

Jern Reilins. Field Semices Manaser, has been with the company since May 1996. He is a graduate of
Purdue University with a B.A. in Physical Education. Jerry previously worked in both the Environmental
Services lndustries and TIVAC for l0 years. He has completed classes and attended lectues on the
operation and maintenance ofwater meters. Jerry is experienced in the operation and maintenance ofwater
meters, valve location, exercising and mapping, use ofthe state ofthe art leak detection equipment, and the
operation ofour Polcon@ Flow Testing equipment. He has supervised leak detection, valye exercising,
hydrant flow testing, wastewater manhole inspection, inventory, and mapping projects.

Glen Lewis, Territom Manaser. Glen joined the M.E. Simpson Co., [nc. team in September of 2010. Glen
joins us with many years ofsales experience in the Western United states. He completed his Bachelor of
Political Science from California State University, Fullerton, Contract and Tort Law from Westem State
University, College oflaw and holds a Master ofPublic Administration degree from Califomia State
Univemity, Long Beach. Glen has extensive knowledge in assel management operations and maintenance
contracting services, specializing in water distribution systems. Glen holds many professional
certifications including Public Speaking, hoject Management, Water Rate Case Methods, Utility Rate
Certification, and many others.



Owen Keenan, P.E, - Wau*esan, Owen joined M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. in August of20l0. Owen has
numerous years ofexperience as a Project Engineer with the City ofChicago Water Department and HDR
Engineering, Inc. Owen received his Bachelor ofScience in Construction liom Bradley Univemity in
Peoria, Illinois. Owen has extensive knowledge in various water and waslewater projects performed for
clients in inois and Indiana. Owen also performed various duties as an engineer for the Department of
Water Management for the City of Chicago for twenty-nine years. He worked with the Design and
Construction Section serving as a Resid€nt Engineer on various projects, including construction ofductile
iron grid mains, tunnels and a coffer dam across the Des Plaines fuver. In the planning Section, Owen
worked on the Hardy Cross computer application ofhydraulic network analysis which simulated the City's
water distribution system under various conditions. using the computer model, he originated reports and
recommended many grid and feeder main improvements. He also gained invaluable experience working
with the Operation Section working with telemetry equipment which transmits pressure and flow
information from pumping stations and distribution system locations in order to ensure an adequate supply
ofwater is available for Chicago and suburban customers. Orven is a Registered hofessional Engineer
(lllinois - #062-049304) and holds a Class "A: Water Supply Operator (Illinois -#6012)" license.

Aarcn Hofiovetz, P.E.. E,I.T., Aaron Horbovetz has been with the company since September of 1999. He
previously worked in retail and industrial businesses. Aaron has completed his degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Purdue University. Aaron has attended numerous classes and lectures related to the
operation, maintenance, and installation ofwater meters, and completed classes in plumbing. Aaron has
experience in the following: maintenance and installation of water meters; valve location, exercising and
mapping, fire hydrant and main capacity flow testing, and the use ofstate ofthe art leak detection
equipmeni; and is also experienced in the use ofall ofour Polcono Flow Testing equipment.



PROJECT STAFFING

The chart below outlines the Project Team to be used during the Water Distribution System Leak Survey
Program for Village of Bun Ridge. One ofthe two Project Leaders listed will lead the Project Team in
the field. Two-Men Projecl Teams will be used at all times durinE the colrse ofthe Proiect for
ressons of E&l@d.l@!igs!gM9g

PROJECT LEADER
Jerry Reiling

PROJECT LEADER
Sandison Petretta

John H. Van Arsdel
Dan E. Hood

PROJECT MANAGER

Chlr. IlLr:hltr
TECHNIC IAN
waltri McCaner



OUALIFICATIONS OF STAFF FOR WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM LEAK SURVEY
SERVICES

In the following section, you will find information about the M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. personnel who will be
acting as Project Manager and hoject Leaders for the proposed project. With each Project Manager and
Project Leader you will find a history ofprojects previously staffed by these individuals. For more
information about any ofthese projects or conlact information, please call us at (800) 255- 1521.

PROJECT MANAGER

RMdv Lus*. Resional Monaeer-Dver
Randy was the Project Manager for the following selected Leak projects.

I (2012) Yillaze ofTinley Park-Tinley Park, IL
I (2012) Village of Flossnoor-F lossmoor, IL
I (2012) Villaqe of Mokeru-Moken4 IL
I (2012) Villase of Gleni,ooffilenwood, lL
a (2012) Ciq of Hickorv Hills-Hickory Hills, IL

(2012) Cin of Markham Markham, IL
(2012\ Cin ofSouth Chicaso Heizh*-South Chicago Heighrs, IL
(2012) Town of Lowell-Lowell, tN
(2012) Cilv of Countm Club Hills Country Club Hills, tL
(2012) l/illaqe of Eversreen Park - Evergteen Park, IL
(2007 -2008,2011) Villag ol Hazel Crest - Hazel Crest, IL
(2008,2011) Villaze of llestnont Westmont, IL

PROJECT LEADERS

Jerm Reilins, Field Semices Monqser
Jerry was the Project Leader for lhe following selected Leak projects.

I (2012) Itillage of Mokna-Mokena, IL
I (2012) Villase of GlenwooAlenwood, lL
I (2012) Citv of Hickorv Hills Hickory Hills, IL
I (2012) Citv of Markhan-Markham, IL

(2012'1 CiO of South Chicaso Heizhts-South Chicago Heights, IL
(2005,201l) Citv ofCountryside Water Depqrhent - Countryside, IL
(2008 - 201l) l/illaze of Mokena - Mokena, I L
(2011) l/illaee ofTinlqt Park - Tinley Park. lL
(201l) City of Chicaoo Heigh* - Chicago Heights, IL
(2010) Yillaqe o{ Hickory Hills - Hickory Hills, IL
(2010) Villaze of Elwood Elwood, IL

Sandison Parettq" Proiecl Leader
Sandison was the Project Leader for the following selected Leak projects.

| (2008,2012) Villaoe of Flossmoor - Flossmoor, IL
(2009 -2010,2012) Villaee ofPelos Hills - Palos Hills, IL
(2007,201l) Cin of Country Club Hills - Country Club Hills, IL
(201l) CiN ofCounfiyside - Countryside, lL
(2010 -2011) Villaze of Downers Grove - Downers Grove, IL
(2007,2011) Villaqe o{ Ever?reen Park - Evergreen Park, IL
(2007,201l) Villaze of Henn - Henry, IL
(2009,2011) Villaqe o{ Hickorv Hills - Hickory Hills, lL
(2011)gE_sf!glpt le@h,t- Palos Heights, IL
(2011\ Citv ofSprinelield Lizht and Water - Springfield, IL

a
a
a
a
a
a
a

a
a
a
a
a
a
a
a
a

a
a
a
a
a
a
a



RELATED PROJECT EXPERIENCE

M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. has been in business since 1979. The company continues to perform services for
numerous cities across Indiana, Illinois, Michigan, Wisconsin, Ohio, Arizona, Georgia, Califomia, and
other regions ofthe United States. We have listed below a few project examples with references. Please
feel fiee to call any ofthese gentlemen and ask them about their project and our services.

City ofSouth Bend, IN (2005 - 20f1)

M.E. Simpson Co., [nc. has been working with the City ofSouth Bend, [N for many years. One ofthe
city's more recent projects was a leak survey conducted in 2009 on approximately 2,772,000 feet ofwater
main. This leak survey was successful, finding 108 leaks across the City. Using an estimated production
price of$.36 per thousand gallons, these leaks were costing South Bend in excess of $ 197.38 per day or
$72,043.99 annually. M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. has recornmended South Bend repeat this survey every two
yeaxs.

Mr. Bob Krol
Manager of Operations
City of South Bend, IN
(s74') 235-s66,0

City of Joliet, IL (200&2009,2010-20rr)

ln early 2009, a leak survey was performed on 180 miles ofwater main out ofan estimated 375 miles of
water main in the City ofJoliet's distribution system and continued in 2010. This program was based on an
RFP issued by the City for the leak survey program. In years past, low bid was used to solicit leak detection
vendors. The 2009 program discovered 149 leaks. There were 33 main breaks, 59 service line leaks (7 on
the customer side ofthe shut off valve), ,16 hydrant leaks, and I I valve leaks (packing and bonnet bolts).
The majority ofthese leaks did not surface because the local geology ofJoliet is limestone. The estimate of
the annualized water losses in dollars was S9l8J54 based on the average costs ofpumpage and water
treafinent (wholesale costs) for this 180 mile survey. GPS coordinates were taken for each leak location as
a part ofthis contsact. The City has since extended the contact for the remainder ofthe system with a
renewal ofthe contsact for the next year.

Mr. James Eggcr\ P.E.
Director ofUtilities
921 East Washington Street
Joliet, Illinois 60433
(8'ts) 724.4222
iessen@iolietcity.ore

City of West Bend, Wisconsin (1997,1999,2001, 2003, 2005, 2007,2009,2011,2013\

M.E. Simpson Co., lnc. has been conducting a Leak Survey on the 125 milc distribution system every
other year as a way for the West Bend Water Utility to reduce water losses occuning in the distribution
system. The Utility owns Leak detection equipment; however, the staff of M.E. Simpson Co., lnc. performs
leak detection work daily and has a greater underctanding ofthe parameters ofdeiection and locating leaks.
The leak surveys have found numerous leaks on this system since the start ofthe leak detection program;
however, because ofthe vigilance ofthe program, these water losses have subsided to a point ofregular
distribution system preventative maintenance.

Mr. John Hemauer
Water Utility Superintendent
251 Municipal Drive
West Bend, Wisconsin 53095
262-33s-sMo
w bwu@c i.west- be nd.w i.us



ADDITIONAL REFERENCES

Dan Lueder
Development Services GM
Cottonwood. AZ
(928) 634-8033

Steve Gerdes
Director of Water
Normal, IL
(309) 4s4-9564

Jeff Musinski
Superintendent of Utilities
Arlington Heights, IL
847-368-5806

Gale Cerber
Water Superintendent
Nappanee, IN
(574) 7734623

Scott Ham
Manager
Silver Creek Water Corp.
(8t2) 246-2889

John Crooks
Water Superintendent
Shakopee, MN
(9s2) 445-1988

The total area to be surveyed for the Urilif, is approximately 9l miles of main line pipe. The area to be
surveyed may vary from the estimated number above. Any additional pipe to be surveyed shall be charged
a per mile price.

PROPOSED SCHEDULE

Proiect Start Date: To be Dctermined

Hold Kick-off meetine: TBD, to cover goals and objectives of Project.

Fieldwork to be comoleted and documented: 9 - I I days depending area to be surveyed.

Leak Location Reoorts: Twenty (20) working days after fieldwork is completed for the Leak Survey
project.



PROPOSAL FEE

M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. is pleased to offer the Village of Bun Ridge our proposal for a Water
Distribution System Leak Survey Program. The leak survey program will be conducted on
approximately 9t miles ofpipe in the Utility's water distribution system. The survey will be
completed by listening on the main line valves, fire hydrants and necessary services by one of
our two-man teams with all necessary equipment fumished by M.E. Simpson Co., Inc. as
described within this document.

A Water Distribution System Leak Survey on 9l miles of water main listening to all mainline
valves and hydrants for a lump sum fee:

FOURTEEN THOUSAND FIVE HTINDRED SIXry DOLLARS (s14,s60.00)

'.Any water main surveyed in addition to the above 9l original miles ofpipe will be surveyed
at the rate of $ 160.00 per mile ofAC and lron Pipe.

All procedures will be followed according to the above project scope. The data gathered will be
compiled and a report ofall leaks formd will be submitted to your Utility as the survey takes
place.

We thank you for this opportunity to acquaint you with our Water Distribution System Leak Survey
services. Please call us ifyou wish to discuss our services in more detail.

Sincerelv Yours-,z-z,rz-,/Randy Lusk
Regional Manager Dyer
RL4ph



VILI,AGE OF BI]RR RIDGE

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE APPROVAI REPORT

BOARD DATE: O6/t0/t3
PAYMENT DATE: 06/II/L3

FISCAT, 13-14

FI]ND FUND NA-I.IE

General Fund
E- 911 Fund
HoEel,/Motel Tax Fund
Capital Inprovenent.s Fund
sidewalks/ Pathway Fund
Water Fund
Sewer Fund
Information Technology Fund

TOTAI AI,L FIJNDS

10

2t
23

31

32

51

51

$352 ,473 .2L 5352,473 - 21,

PAYROLL

PAY PERIOD ENDING MAY 25, 2 013

Legislation
Administration
Comlnunity Developnent
Finance
Police
Pub1ic works
Water
Sewer
IT Fund

TOTAI

TOTAI,

PAYROLL

1, 573 . 95

1s,413.04
9,030.85
8,021.85

LO6 ,611 .43
23 ,3'7 r .22

23 , 436 -25
5 , 412 .49

0.00

sL93 , 991 .49

8r
PAYABLE

45,359.08
r,021 .77

15 ,412 .36
2, 175.00

154.80
2AO , 106 .53

473.35
4,744.92

TOTAI,

AMOT]NT

45 ,359 .04
7,021 .t7

t6 , 9L2 .36
2,L'75.00

154.80
240,706.53

473 .35
4,744.92

GRAND TOTAI, s546 , 410 .7 0



ooi

ln 
a:N

6666 
O

F
 

ooo

E
 

ii 
G

o 
oo 

o
F

 
O

O
 

E
T

E
! 

ooooo

t>
t

; 
i-;J

.Zc(,
O

E
.4 

0i

i6(I)0
E

 
i6 

o 
>

 
i6

>
i 

E
 

>
i 

.4 
>

i
=

 
>

 
o 

=
 

>
 

! 
E

 
>

 
6 

E
 

>
 

t 
t 

>
r 

F
 

F
 

i
\i 

6 
(,

o- 
@

 
al 

! 
oE

 
>

 
o>

 
oozm

ool!
o\ooot 

6r' 
{H

sH
6'!

! 
sF

 
c 

, 
ir 

c 
a 

ri 
w

<
rN

aar 
a 

rl 
bnno

F
o 

4 
rp 

E
 

r@
 

! 
rrib 

I 
I 

rir 
.; 

oo 
-N

N
N

-6F
o6 

E
 

o6 
E

 
o6 

c 
<

<
 

F
i6o_

orr.!>
N

o@
o 

o 
<

 
ooN

s 
o 

sa@
F

F
F

r
H

o 
>

a 
trrd 

>
>

>
:o

or 
(, 

r 
in 

6 
6 

n oF
 

N
N

N
oO

oo
i6=

6t 
-t=

i6 
6oioi666o

d 
sdd
6bb

o . . . c 
E

ee
o o o o d 

oooro 
o o o

(r 
(I, 

qrE
cco

iH
H

H
 

E
 

f 
' 

J 
O

 
ID

 O
 

O
uttttct<

c
3 

qr 
E

.a.i.4 
do 

ltt
o o 

o 
oo 

o 
c c c o o o o

N
 

I 
oddcccc

i.ioorD
i 

xxxoooo)
aaarS

 
0J 

r!
'! 

6do6l!'U
'4 

a
(,) >

 
B

 
O

aJ>
O

oE
la 

4 d<
€O

O
&

!tB
t3

O
 o'N

o ri.i 
I 

rr 
I

o 
t; 

r1
: 

E
-rr 

6 oiorord\
rracccc

>
 

o_ 
!

ooi 
c c c 

c
E

 
.4 'np 

o(u 
dl!l!r!

>
 

i>
.4 

>
>

lrD
ooiD

, 
orF

<
-

o 
>

@
 o o,r 

>
>

ruoiJo
o,l

oo
o 

- 
ori 

o 
oi

rr-o:c r{ 'n >
 

(n
\ 

E
O

 
I!.4! 

l! 
4qE

C
C

! 
r 

E
dr 

F
r(J>

 
!,c'trD

lD
oo

!r 
!) o c@

 
4d&

dd
o 

c 
od 

o >
or 

or oo
r! 

oo.cci.4!c 
12 

E
eE

e
! 

oio 
o o.d 

>
n 

ii !i 
!i

o-r 
ac>

; 
ccrJoooo

oo
o1 

a 
o 

o
o 

o, 
ri'lcccc

oo4H
oo 

o9.oD
D

S
D

>
o

q)o
t

co 
-oooooooo

O
\o

or

N
I

or 
o.rr 

rr 
r 

r 
r 

ort 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I

oiiiiidd

t:

>
c

N
6 

o. 
=

>
.4 

'! 
o 

>
.;

'!-o- 
' 

o.o
r 

(rori
oc! 

(rJ i
ao<

c 
co

ol.4 
'! 

o<
.c O

.!d 
! 

oi
o. 

oo 
o

-(nior
;oa,i{
E

F
(JO

O
 

F
.u

qqq

z
l:E

riD
c

i(J,ooo6 
coo

E
--{r

E
oooo

ooooo
ol 

I 
I 

I 
lrr 

r

ir 
I 

I 
r

ooooo 
0Joo

rD
 

rr
E

a)

'!oro
(.o

o '! rr-i 
0)

o>
: 

o o<
4d

i 
o olD

D
 

>
o.4 

0 
rJ

!oo!!rD
rD

E
-4,
B

E
 

'lri 
o

o 
d!.i.ao

ood'd-a!!0)
-1 .do>

N
E

C
l!

i 
r..r 

o.4 
( 

cor
'!oJl!i'!'!,
o>

o/)IrlO
r0o

F
)O

,!E
>

d'!oE
ro:a

\ 
r 

o tr6 
r

oF
 

o
i 

o o oU
) 

tn
\or'!crrtc
rl 

>
 o(-a

-o(Joor 
!

;l 
roo!

>
c 

o 
oro

'! '! ! 
'n !.i

>
!0()urD

oo
ro. 

I
ii.du-o'!\
-ix 

a 
ac

>
.i 

rD
 rD

.i a 
o 

o)
6.A

l>
t>

o.i
E

 
i 

o '! c ri
rD

doo\>
o!

I 
o\\ 

'
o<

!ro!:,
.C

 O
. ,. rraN

o 
6

oa 
o o 

x 
x

hii 
c c !! 

. 
!

6F
,(.)()O

oF
i.(

i!ooo
'n!.-r
oo6no
ao r r r r r r r 

r

oo666
ir 

I 
r r r rr 

r

!!iii

,oJooo
LA

idd

cao5

z

E
.H

6 
rrd

i9. 
{.)

1
\,!\o..o 

!

\o o.o 
F

l
oD

O
 

O (.)
oooi!ooooco!co)

oC
)

oocr.loo..1o

(,o5:oxrr. 
>

6

>
 

ioH

Y
 

\J-

=
oz,

E
- Y

z4

z 
c:lr

o 
x(F

H
 

'zo
5 

=
5

a 
=

o
* 

u-
* 

=
o

(.)

oz



N
-ooE

o',N
rooroo6N

o6o6o

:nl!: 
oaidi:

\\\i<
\\\<

<
i\\\\

ooociooo-ooo
tr@

c 
ccc! 

o 
oaoo,!

: 
! 

ln 6 6 ru 
i 

.r 
e- 

a
tr 

o 
l] 

Q
.o.oc 

; 
oo 

5ouui
cc 

E
E

E
6r 

j--:iii 
d 

oc,
3'! 

O
O

or 
co+

o,ooo 
.n 

.i.; 
-6oror..

dr!! 
.4D

.i 
,e@

@
aaaa 

aa 
;,;r.;.;,!.f 

.f,.;>
oo(r 

t 
-ta 

i9 
tn 

iicc.;aar-
or!c 

!o.ai 
rr a ! 

! 
! 

! 
.; 

; .; 
a a a a a a 

E
. 

E
i;;iriqqc

:irro6o 
oJ >

.a.a.4.4.a.i 
E

o 
;;Li 

Li !_ 
!

E
E

i 
! 

tuo 
B

 a 
o o - 

. 
- or o o c, o i 

i 
q q q q q q 

tn 
.^;!""!

!!!!4dur!o 
F

 o o 
>

, X
 x ; 

; 
; 

; 
i 

o fr q * 
d,ooE

orooc
orruoo 

ooro6i 
c 

d,&
a 

rL r&
 rd !r rrr rrl i 

o o o o o o o 
a, j 

! 
d a i 

n ; 
_ i 

o o 
or

E
, o o' d'! 

,c o 
E

,' E
 >

 u 6 
rD

 o o o o o o 
.a o, 0r 0r ; 

c c u
c c c c rr o c c c 

-i 
!: 

N
- 

dd 
!,D

 
o o o 

rD
 or ! 

a-i 
o o o o o o i 

Z
 oy 

i 
i;; 

i;,G
,!,!

! 
, 

! i 
i 

i 
i.d 

or 
! 

6, d,- 
! 

ar t 
o o ! 

0 q a a a a.a.; 
d, o.; 

o o ii 
i.i ; 

i 
x x !

'! 
'n '! l!.e 

o p.i;aii 
rr c € a, 

l! 6 E
,o,!,! 

c a' d i 
c c a a a o o e 6,! 

E
 E

; 
i 

a: iLj o o o
E

 6.c 
.! { 

,n { 
o 0r 

o E
 E

 ,! or or d o n; 
i 

a 1 1 1 I 
! 

r.;; 
n A

 6 o o , i 
_; 

o
o o o o (, @

 .o o o F
) L z.h 

<
) e u u >

 o o o O
 ; 

li 
c( t 

: 
i 

d o o E
 d, d, A

 d A
 o o i 

r; 6 E
: t: J J 6 ; 

<
 <

 i
: 

l! 
.i>

 
t

I 
E

 
o'!nl 

j=
 

6->
'o 

>
ti 

i 
o6

io 
- 

ltio 
lnoolldo 

r. r.
ordoE

o 
>

i 
ci6r 

_ 
>

oiio 
T

r{-o 
iiiri

6 
, 

()3\ 
r' 

* 
-!: 

liE
o 

o_d6
r 

>
i5>

 
o 

t-i=
>

 
ooT

.: 
,! 

t@
r>

c\6o.rd 
dd:

q 
t 

6 
c 

6 
o\i- 

I 
rio-E

r6i 
oE

 
I 

o,!o(Jo6td 
ii: 

d
cteo 

\r-.(aj! 
-;-ao,jT

;A
nA

<
; 

!!e
r. '!E

 
.i-rqra- 

| 
>

 
r!E

or>
...i-(r 

c;a 
6ooop 

ooi
c 

r!-.4-r:orr! 
!sd 

jor_ 
ouo.r 

>
*oooiii

>
 

or@
 

'!i-!o3&
 

o 
=

ir-is6irilro 
n 

;.i>
o 

c04(rr(r
r,!\.c! 

ii!!c 
>

rc4pao_ 
i6i 

o
!\:E

o 
6 - 

- 
o 

>
 ! 

o +
 

q, r 
! 

j 
e , 

D
 

; 
j 

r 
o o r 

o - 
.r E

 .i 
r 

n >
 

6
-!L 

--,!>
\jJ\o, 

E
\.; ! 

.; 6 
o o !, L 

o, . 
." 

\oor!-iE
f

or-q p o- 
r! r:E

i 
rD

.ci 
E

 >
 u E

r 
a- 

o E
 6a_,! 

or 
! 

!4<
 

!; 
;ji;;

rD
(U

6-ai6o 
o E

 '! ! 
>

 E
 0r r .i 

! 
x 5 .i .r 

- d, - 
r .i 

6 J : 
o o ! 

o, o o q 
ooddd;.\

rJ o or 
o(,qr 

'! 
I 

c 4 -o.d o!, 
;- 

c(,! 
o 6 0 !r 0 0., 

!;iii; 
_-:::r;

! 
o >

 c o .4 o E
 \ 

\ 
t 

o .i I 
!.o>

o 
.a 

in!oo!rD
u!o, 

bi: 
\ 

o
ruc: 

iD
 

a-u-a-; 
o-ao,-a 

u 
:orii(jtooo

oe 
o,>

tu 
I 

E
\o o* 

o 
ca 

o r 
d@

r(,qq 
o - 

,u.i 
c cj i 

oioo 
o 

i 
a !rr 

o\i 
o o !.: 

_..
>

>
i>

\o!!>
>

 
<

 
rI!n<

oiir- 
orri;L; 

!.i!oooC
)r

oo 
r! oou 

o.rr,i 
16 

i..r,pocu 
ao,-or 

o.0.rr;
o.r 

q u 
o - 

3 i 
i 

- 
d 

or ! 
o.! 

lo o ! 
o 6 ol !/ d;6 

>
 >

 r 
N

 (J o ,.. 
rD

 o .!! 
a ,i:;; 

I 
o

'n i 
'! 

o @
 <

 I 
i! { 

J o o..4 
or r 

B
 

qr !, O
 o o 

or o c ,.; 
! 

:: 
i 

o t 
z Z

 z z O
.4 - 

, 
) 

t 
d 6;; 

o.- 
c, I 

I
N

 z >
 F

 or d.E
ao &

,n d >
 >

 H
 u) <

hE
 aE

 
ui, 

k 5 5 5 i 
I2t.6 

o 
o: i; 

=
 >

 d a _ o *

-(
- 

;i
>

 >
 >

 >
i

>
E

=
t 

>
 

od 
>

 
o

- 
oooo=

v
>

N
 

G
 

z
ro63qo*

E
(J 

io\\oo:
Irorrrr@

 
f 

!

sN
s 

e i6i 
cadin9nr 

r.?A
6n66@

i- 
r<

orj 
ioo 

r 
r@

@
oi6o6N

@
 6 o o 

F
) : 

N
 F

) i 
i 

i 
i 

6 i 
>

 >
 o i 

a o 
oo>

t;;aoooN

6999o 
oooooo5ooo

or*<
q 

o00666;;;;;;60@
r 

r 
rrrr-i 

-,Ltt! 
I 

r 
I 

I
ooi<

3 
6 9 

l{1 o 9 o 6 6 6 r, ; 
; 

; 
; 

,; ,i i 
io e o

rrrrrr 
, , ! ! ! i i i i i i i i ; i i i i .r I I r 

r
::.nni 

id;;;::;iH
ooo6ii6;--ao

oooooooooooooooooooooao
riH

;;;=
;rid;;;;=

:;::::::: 
*__*

trilo5q)

doH
>

d,tr
&

^
.oY

.p:r16
3 aA

 
o

- 
Y

N
 

o
3 -I 

e

i 
rE

3 5

=
 dz

E
<

 
Y

Z
C

&
 

.;4
o:z

a 
"2o

@
 

J-o 
!

d,- 
!

t 
i:E

 
c

(/) 
X

er 
o)

H
 

=
a 

5
o 

60

oo2.,
1,ooo,c.-iio(.)

.-to

E..oE
.4

e1 9d
YrlE

\o...0 
2

\o 
o@

 
F

l
oD

O
 

(,



6O
:l!

600-o
O

E
,

ooooooo 
E

r

oi
.o

>
:>

\o6&
o!

c-
rD

 
ia

60)i
6ori

6 
<

 
o 

qJ ovr
c cooo6rrr

N
 r 

ro6
6bF

ro6

aco
oi5
o6

!!$\o'o
!!aia

o 
eE

::
3@

zzoqq

.O
a

o4ooooi 
, 

$4ooo

:>
666

A

oo
oo 

4 
E

 
.4 O
>

o.
4 

A
a

d 
6 

(J()
qa 

o!d!
&

aa,!,!t.aoo,
.i.i 

. 
. 

. 
rD

 
iD

ccoooE
E

 
deee 

or.a.i 
c 

!'i.i.a
,rcccao. 

6arcc
>

>
H

H
H

.i.d 
E

 p ! 
! 

ri ! 
!r 'n 6 '! p o 

E
r E

r d\
,a 

oo3<
toioa,o

.rd 
r 

r 
rarar 

caraccc 
oorirnooo

'!'!!!!rrtrrr 
ouoo,!,!'!roo.a 

E
Ir

o 
oooo=

=
ki

aE
q@

@
oa 

orr*oooiiooc.a
oo 

!! 
i-)oollriooo

uoqqE
E

c 
rD

oooD
oD

 
E

co!r!!t
ooo6'n 

ctttctid'n'!
rJp!rJrxx 

.a!a!o0ot,'.4-i
li C

 a € rD
 

O
! 

C
 C

 C
'nrr6rr! 

E
coro()

B
E

tE
E

4<
 

E
 r 

r 
J 4 .0 .q l! d C

 a H
 =

 i 
i

dco.:t
>

!<
!

r!o.,tc
E

 
<

 
F

r 
o 

>
a

eerr lr 
! 

-6 
.d

oo 
- 

c 
c 

6c 
ta

oo;
'! 

c re 
f 

E
oo 

N
'! 

F
)E

 
E

o--6.ip\!
oE

---!E
 

iiilllo 
E

r{ riii 
'n I 

it 
d\\\-

H
i- 

r 
- 

o- 
oa6e 

>
li 

o,.i 
o o

o>
>

>
! 

,o 
,oN

N
o6 

l!Jc!-
:ior!ddcci

l 
-E

E
E

6X
 

5O
,!i

ol 
r 

r 
r - 

o 6i 
l!0 

!i 
>

 rr l!
ql)gcc 

rdltH
o>

ooB
.4 l. 0 0 0066 

!O
5O

l!6A
r!'!!.4

'! 
rD

or 
occao 

,!oe!
{,r@

r@
!E

 
3>

orrD
o}6

>
o...

.4>
dor.ii! 

<
or.o!! 

B
ou

.i.iN
qN

E
lc 

!olio.io 
dn-

ci\\\'a 
! 

o ! 
l! l! ! 

o o >
,! 

co(,
40,E

0rE
E

 
o

au
: 

h O
 0, t 

o o o '! !} o o , 
I! 

rr o 6
N

i@
@

@
o<

 
ij4>

>
>

eG
=

i!H
co(J

co,!!
l!C

O
.4

1'F
 

F
 

F
 T

'!irs@
@

@
oo

rr.oooooooo
oro'o\oa@

rr 
,6660 

@
\o\oa@

@
coi 

r 
r 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 
I

(}06@
@

@
@

rr

lrp@
o@

@
@

@
(o 

@
@

@
@

('G
co.rrr 

r I 
r r 

ot 
r r I 

I
?qooooooo

! 
H

H
H

H
 

>
>

>
(J ID

 
dE

C
! 

in . 
oo,o.

!oeoooo€E
E

!o;ooooooo
r: 

I 
ouu

E
 

A
E

d'O
O

T
O

olol
o). 

qqqq 
<

 <
 <

!!-r>
E

E
E

;.i.a
t'o!

)tu'6eatsE
dd6

o 
zoo

!) 
ii;dF

H
F

r
o uli 

-o -o -o -o
xa 

a e e e ea-a
rr.4c!lri
! 

oaa!! 
E

 <
 

E

c !:E
 

{ 
6

l! J{ 
3 3 3 3 ir ! 

!
,.lroH

4<
<

{O
oo

>
o 

u
r,)lrixll 

riorr
,E

r 
O

 O
 O

 
O

 {) 0
. 

(JI,]L
-^&
'!orD

!! 
oI!d

E
\ 

U
'o 

o
.o '! E

 E
 

rr! 
E

orrr! 
! 

ri 
orD

!
u!.444 

O
rr! E

,4
!oo0){) 

,rrcc
C

 O
.i5, 

'n O
-o

'! 
tt at 

lEo r. oo
4C

o
>

oco.o.
o 

!,
! 

ulJ!O
.40<

t
,oE

o(!ol!-oo
:6 

O
 a t 

I 
o N

i

;(rH
oooE

<
oo

di tid!
ir=

N
I!tutu(4tur(atu

o.e

1c

d iit

.>

o4 
@

 @
 

@

orrrrrr 
I 

tt 
I

oood6

caon(.)
o.-tocoooaoao'dco(.)

q)
oq)
tr.-lF
Iooc

(,o6Ro 
-N

 rd

r,r 
)H

(5 
:J

A
2

>
 

':oH

=
 az

t- 
Y

 z4
!(, 

.: <

d 
IjN

o
- 

F
':-

F
 

-Z
O

ro io
(4 xq

oz:

E
 ..r

r.,d
oti! 

Y8:rz
\o 

di rD
 

F
l

o5o 
u



6 
0 

0 
6 

c) 
0006666no

-t\csa
!c

otc6a
€c>

I&ae
) 

>
 

E
 

E
 

! 
o6--

c 
x 

o 
cr 

! 
' 

ir-
q 

d 
'r 

>
 

'! 
4 

>
>

>
>

iiiii 
>

 
oe

? 
t' 

q 
9 

ttE
E

>
>

>
>

>
o 

oooo
rD

 
E

 
! 

r\\\6lnl!l!l!>

rtoiro 
oooddN

N
6

\o 
6 

I 
qgs 

I 
I 

I 
I 

i
@

 
o 

\ 
! 

N
N

 
ro66v 

oo6ooo6v
!-' 

q 
i 

q 
li 

r 
! 

r 
66 

oooaaN
N

o
.2 

I 
I 

osvrdin'oo6
6 

O
 

O
 

3 
o 

! 
F

r 
rg{.iss(oeo

601
66oE

:

pdr!!!
o(oE

o-c
oraaaa
O

r&
A

(!

- 
ee

E
r uo 

(Ju
O

.O
.O

 
rr 

O
O

c 
oo

>
 

r.) 
d<

 
o.o,o 

,l
c >

>
 

3 
0,or 

c
o 

o 
eE

z 
a1

! 
rroo 

oi
ooor! 

!) 
ord 

c 
E

c 
LH

oa
6 

'! 
(ro 

l!l!E
:t

qqqo 
o 

B
P

 
tJ 

;; 
O

.j 
-

o 
t 

iirr
o 

0[).i!! 
i 

o E
 I 

o 
rD

 rD
 rD

 ru o o 
o)

odrulooo 
ooo 

ooorrd.b
ooouci!tccc

o o o o.a 
.A

E
 ssa 

o rr rr;.i.i.n.u.d 
d.i

!) !r 
(D

 0 4, ru,o l! - 
>

 >
 6 i 

i 
i 

! 
E

 E
 t 

c ..).i.i,! 
.! d =

 t 
r 

a d
c€-,!,!,noooooH

t<
!!

o o oo 
(9oooH

!trrr<
o 

o u >
 o o ooz 

F
 F

 o(,(.,ati 
i 

(,
oooo
trt! 

o 
(r>

oo 
>

 
6

'! t 
'!.! 

o<
F

 
l! 

14 
r

ir333 
tH

nE
\- 

:E
 

d6
!>

q 
m

6 
0,.4 

!
d 

l!i\E
>

 
- 

e
o6'dto- 

.'E
 

- 
-- 

odr 
a

C
 I r,o-i 

o. 
- 

>
>

 
; 

ii
.4^6 

O
N

i- 
- 

E
- 

-:
ccr:cz 

cds!\\>
 

>
t 

>
- 

- 
o_

'!'!'!it'!o.? 
'!o.d>

>
E

 
dli 

oa-- 
.

0i ci or r,) 6 
rD

 s 
o ! 

J ! 
t 

E
C

=
.dl!J 

rrs 
!r- 

>
-

al a 
-:1 -E

----.tqot 
r.4rE

E
 

.-o>
6;

JJ(m
E

 
\e6O

-.c:\ 
.-rr!

\\\\o\\oo 
<

ol 
ira

d 
; 

o.iri
66l!l!E

6(lr 
>

 
rrJ ru 

>
 

.i.daiq=
 

ooro.-;
!ooo, 

.orilr 
I 

ci.i!d466-,,d6
'ncE

co 
o(,0(J.i

!l !l 
!? !l !! o/ r! 5r, 

olf 
otup-oo 

']or;o.!.
eeec 

ac.4 
vu 

e. oJ o.- 
I 

c o! E
l! 

; 
ito 

o
E

l0r.4eE
ececo 

! 
iaU

t>
oJtn.;

<
 

rD
 (r.-.i

oo!oE
o!!!! 

J,!L.-irci 
i'

ooooJoru\qq 
o\ 

ri 
_o

qoo<
idJrrrrrr:

ior(r(r(j 
toooij 

-a
)aa-Q

 
osF

B
l 

zcD
=

=
']oarr!d

t 
!!!.l.!

. 
o!!! 

ii;;;::;
o'!+

r$ 
66ao;@

@
@

@
@

6i6i!

B
9Y

Y
Y

 
aaoo6@

o@
\o666iD

!! 
! 

! 
| 

| 
i 

i 
i 

i 
i 

i 
i 

'
4\o!!! 

oo--...;--;;;
ro !\o 

\o @
 

@
 \o a 

@
 G

 o @
 @

 \o \o to @
 n

E
o,rrrr 

rrrrrr 
riii,iiii

ao4a4 
H

:--;i:r
n66ooo;o;;;;;;;;;;

t

;o

EE

E
>

!E

o;e

ia

caotq)ocooq)ooco!cql

oq)
oo)tr.Aooo(o!azF
]
o

(,4-

o 
: 

,.1

i 
rB

i
o 

:--

d 
,^- <

o:z

O
 

X
<

F
.

5 
=

3
a 

:a
F

 
Y

-
(, tsr

o:

E
.i



r) 
oo

ii 
r,r 

&
 

iaiiad 
&

. 
ri 

i.i.i.idi:
\\\\\\\

-IY
1 

'r, 
i 

i 
H

@
.ido66

p 
\\\\\\\\\\\ 

, 
, 

<
<

{\\\\
6o66 

b 
b 

6;;;oD
o

oo 
e, 

E
r 

oooooo 
a 

a 
oo--ooo

I
j

oN
roi6\

LEI 
::_ 

.:
..i

6 
t 

E
E

>
 

,! 
;

6 
E

ii 
' 

-ooo
oo 

o. 
! 

o 
oa<

 
o. 

! 
<

 
;-oo

innnni 
o<

d<
<

<
=

<
 

A
<

t<
rrrr 

! 
-a6iooo@

ooo 
- 

, 
6 

;oo6
:o9\\\\ 

N
rrF

o 
o 

b 
qgw

w
6o06 

t 
! 

6 
6noo

*nn99!9g,9 
9 

I 
crciooioiiooo 

o 
ra 

r-ij6eee
.. 

E
 

* 
o666i,;66=

:i 
; 

-. 
irU

iioo-

,nun
ocoa
orr63

oL.

c4441
H

 o.ooo
o 

o.o.oo.
a 

-a 
a a a

oopolooo
rE

'nuooo
ll 

oqqqrq
cj. 

oO
O

O
O

N
rJ4 

0 0 0 0
.io 

ooo(r
! 

>
o 

c c c 
c

an:<
aaaa

>
4E

adddd

^!i6 
>

'!
@

 r 
>

tH
.n =

6 
0 l! >

=
 

r
o 

ot 
6 r I

ooor=
B

&
d* 

5B
 

r ar\
- 

o oaB
\0J

>
o 

\tu 
o 

dl
E

 
r 

U
lot-i

I 
rr u,6 

0\.i 
!

i,) o -i.i 
t 

r. !
.4<

!r!r6
>

.ao!!'!o
or o. 'n o oo t!oc
'!o.docid)
! 

'n 'n '!i 
E

r
r! r{ ri 

>
o 

'!
- 

t 
or c-o 

o >
E

r 
o, 

t!4<
d(

>
6.arim

466
a: 

O
 O

. o U
 () U

 U
ooE

.(N
(J(JU

()

E
O

m
ooiiii

i 
ooooooo

el 
r 

r 
r 

r 
r 

I

co.r rrrrr 
r

E
rO

@
@

\o\O
@

@
@

9999 
q

uo{Jo!o!i!(ro)
!.r 

rlocc
2929q9qqoo_
oorqro)aa).i-iiio
rD

oooJr!rD
o'!rnE
! 

! 
! 

l! 
00

ooooooo{,uuu
oorD

o
rD

- 
o

r 
r 

| 
| 6 

r >
ia

.iooioi- 
o>

^>
 

-
,r,i.4,4('4^g=
C

 C
 a 

l=
 

cdi 
r

6'!6'nt'6<
-@

oruoo'noio
iiia 

E
ivia

oooocro 
o

! 
6 

' 
o-

\\\\o\\ooi1,
t!'n'!'!E

'!o.ar>
o

r 
c c c!

o o o i, o 
oJ '! r\ 

r 
l<

E
d,sl&

artidord\
>

 
6' O

r C
 C

 O
E

E
E

E
 

E
 

O
O

.i
r.>

>
l!rr

oooo!op!oo!

ccc(tnq'!'!lr)oi
D

"14F
IF

'I.]

qr6000
!looo
30 r r r 

r

lJ!es@
<

o,r r r 
r

,O
IN

N
N

I!O
o66

r'r,rooo
oiiii

!B
 

r 
r 

r 
r

'! 
ooo

coa\olo

or\o\oe
coil 

rl 
r 

r 
r 

r 
I 

I 
r

5(l)aai
rri a dt f) f)

! 
diii

r'!
r 

(, 
(! 

(r ru o 
rD

 rD
 rD

 o 
o .Y

 
x

o 
! 

'! 
'n 6 

6 
6 

l', c' 6 
l! 

r! 
O

 O
 O

 
O

' 
. 

o!!.6!-!!!!! 
! 

I 
t 

t
rD

 i! 
g 

C
 C

 C
 C

 C
 c

l! 
o:E

:E
 

rr:C
,!,!l!ln

3 
- 

E
tS

t
>

3 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

>
 

>
 

>
 

>
o 

o 
o 

o 
o 

o.! 
0) o 

o 
o 

0, o 
o 

o
dr o 

o 
dl o 

o. or dr d' o 
o' E

\ o\ ot ot
c 

cccc 
r!'!'!6 

afi4aa-a

'n '! 
'! 

'! 
o 

ass44
.i.i.ioooo

rD
 

>
>

t!
O

 
(J 

E
E

O
 dD

 
O

J
o^ 

n 
dr 

>
 dxo

i 
(D

E

. 
o 

oro+
 

N
 c 

c
r{ r{ r. >

!
s 

o.o.oo.ol! 
0.0.o.o.o 

! 
o^

I 
qr c oi 

!.iF
<

c 
14 

4 2<
 

<
<

<
 

o, 
06

It44-oc 
rr 

I 
I 

rrrr 
rrr 

!E
<

o o o, 
4 r@

 
o 

a
!rrE

F
o 

a.c, <
 <

.c, r.<
trD

N
!(D

u o <
 

o: 
!\ 

o o o o o o o o o o ri u 
ln t

. 1! >
 o ! 

o. {I o. o. o o o. o. o o , 
E

oj
t 

O
 F

 O
- 

iD
 

o.i 
rj E

^)o<
 

E
 

Jr!
'!/!LO

- 
rU

 O
 0r O

r A
r o, o o rD

 E
 o 

o
iitr! 

!!rrroio
!9 

.-cu9 
r!or!r!l!p. 

66
>

-(ri.- 
r&

!ttttsS
tttt

! 
F

 O
 oO

o 
o o44 

444.<
/) 

a
oord 

o N
 

o. q 6 ! 
! 

! 
! 

a' ! 
! 

! 
1, <

 : 
o:

nJot!>
oxrD

!oo 
ooo30c6

rr.rF
;=

 
uacc 

clrcccE
c

@
 a 

aa n E
 6 !l 

ro I 
r.r 

:l :t E
 E

 i 
E

.! 
d i 

.o i

(aoao)
lrqL,a
E

>
&

c

dl:
:,lU

o 
--- 

Il.1

Y
N

 
o)

U
 e: 

I
4 

"4 
X

=
 

ta 
5

H
 

-50 
c

>
 

--i oH

:oz
t 

Y
z<

o:2

d 
;iN

o
z 

l3 
t

o 
x<

F
H

 
"Z

O
t- 

-&
@

co :o 
rr

H
 

rF
) 

O
d,, 

!
(4 

X
F

 
c)

oo2H
O

v)C
)

ootrF
loo..1o

EiL 
6!

\35
z

@
 oo 

ts.]
oD

O
 

O



F

C
I!

I!!
cd'

aoa
C

r91
r!oJ>

 
c

E
d

xrut
o >

l

c 
i 

oai 
c

,! 
oJ E

vg.6 
o

I,{cD
A

6ca.4
ao 

v,aa.)
iI&

E
ii&

rl'n
'! 

\'!'! 
e

rrai!trrr{!
oi 

o-i 
o 0, o o

c 6 ! 
o.! 

I 
t !l

o r o r!.i 
6 iD

 (
(,rd:co(,toH

O
E

E
F

ooooE
E

ouuuN

!!!!!!!!

L 
T

,. I! 
I,. I&

 I! 
E

i 
IT

.

t

oo.o.o.o.o.o.o.o.
o.o.o.o.o.o.o.o.o.d

ooo',r,

ooo 
o ooooo 

c

ouooo
.1 tzddd

da 
ori 

>
-- 

-
nd\.nE

>
>

ii(t
E

 >
 o t 

I 
'! r! >

 >
>

\\tu\o>
t,!,!t

oo 
r 06r 

r 
r =

r 
o

oo 
I 

r 
'!

N
N

o|N
o\\oroi,

drdr! 
t'(n

!!!!!o!o'r 
r 

oi
! 

1' 
O

! br 1'
!rr!!'!

u u '! o o L !rJ! 
ur

p 
oor.r.o.

4>
6'O

ira.
-aoE

>
c(,o'rriD

o>
('di 

c
n 

,.rriF
lJE

oE
-o-oo

a 
xxx

j 
iiid4d<

xo 
o

E
 

to 
6 

o

;: 
! 

.r .r
a,ooo()(.){JoO

(.)O
()

P
E

.!rrooo
E

O
idi

sH
 

I 
r 

r 
r

rttttt

!!rs{
cor 

r r 
r

,(niid
LO

@
@

@

caoao
!rq
(,1
O

U
H

>
tra

-F
(U

E
R

,,-
l! 

--- O
 

O
o 

:I|l
<

N
 

o
6 -: 

e
4 

"g 
'5c

>
 

'-: oH
:bd

&
 

=
zo.

E
 

Y
2d

d 
.:<

o:2

H
 

- 
Z

o
l- 

-/.@
E

 ;B
 

6
d,-,!
(,) xF

 
o)

H
 

=
o

o 
u@

(9i

ooz 
,.t0)
ooao)

.-to

Eng. 
il

\,E
z

\oo@
 

l]
oD

o 
o


	06-10-13 Agenda & Summary
	06-10-13 Minutes
	06-10-13 Ordinances
	06-10-13 Resolutions
	06-10-13 Considerations
	06-10-13 Vendor List1

